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MBEHRE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TERAAEEBE AT BRFEZEE  BE -

The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results, assets,

BEMERTE - liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:
HZNANALEE
Year ended 31 December
20106 2009F 2008F 20074 20064
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ARETR | ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
E3 Results RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
HEWA Revenue 396,298 615,391 777,807 834,608 681,617
Her Where:
MLCCE MLCC business 396,298 300,289 232,646 221,545 182,402
BEFH ) Mobile phones (Note) - 315,102 545,161 609,774 484,428
BEFHit Mobile phone components
(Bt5#) (Note) - - - 3,289 14,787
HERA Cost of sales 308,350 529,227 (679,592) (701,641) (575,459)
e Gross profit 87,948 86,164 98,215 132,967 106,158
EBFE Profit for the year 33,955 19,703 11,317 68,433 48,139
AT AR - attributable to:
-BARREREA ~ Equity holders of the parent 33,955 19,703 11,317 68,433 48,176
S LG — Minority interests = - - - (37)
BREKRRH Basic earnings per share 8.4flcents | 49(lcents  28fllcents  22.6{licents  16.1{licents
R12B31H
As at 31 December
20104 2009F 2008F 20074 20064
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
AR®TR | ARBETR ARETT AREFT ARETR
BERER Assets and liabilities RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 662,375 600,239 677,357 623,102 438,236
BaE Total liabilities 225,105 190,144 288,694 235,027 213,112
BREE Total equity 437270 410,095 388,663 388,075 225,124
AT AR - attributable to:
-BARRESEA - Equity holders of the parent 437,270 410,095 388,663 388,075 224,947
- DERE — Minority interests = = = - 177

ek : AEEBRESHFEDHCNE2009F108148RTH  Note:
BRENAE LBBHEARNFYMEAREEAR
ARAIMEIBREN L BRBAREBRIEER -

The mobile phones segment of the Group was discontinued upon the pass
of the ordinary resolution to dispose of its entire equity interest in Eycom
Technology Co., Limited at the EGM held on 14 October, 2009.

FHEREEAERAT
2 —T-TFFH
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HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 484

HSBC House
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Grand Cayman
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BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
8th Floor, Tien Chu Commercial Building
173-174 Gloucester Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS INTHE PRC
EYANG Building

No. 3 Qimin Street

No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area

Hi-tech Industrial Park

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Weirong
Mr. Leung Wai Chung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Chung cra

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484

HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1-1186

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Shenzhen Ping An Bank

Citibank, Shenzhen

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRC LAWYER
Win & Sun Law Firm

ASTO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW
Conyers Dill & Pearman

HONG KONG LAWYER
Michael Li & Co.
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Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

STOCK CODE
00117
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HITESE

PRIELRSCE 525 ARAIMTESEREERS
FRITHAE - AEDEBR  REREER
B oBRAEEMEAEEMAIPA  HN1982F £
¥REMISRCAWMERREIARS) BT
BEBLEN - 2E%E - M1982F AL LR E
N—RETEZEEFHEEMRERDHEAGRES
BRMDERABEERME - R19944F - & it
EEABREEENEETHILEEZT2001F
B1996F  EEAIAINGEBTFEER] R
19007 FEMEE[ A — 1B FEE - WHR19984F
BEELFENEZEARREREEEZE2R
* o BREEB001F11A—ERETAEEER °

BAESE 4358 AN ARMITES C MLCCE X
g A5 AEBEMLCCEMSHNBIRRE &
R o BILAE  1990F6 A EENEFRET AE
(REERRFARE) RS IRBEL BT -
M99 F BE¥NEFRIBE T AE2(RBEP R KA
B) HBEMEEL:  TEET4HAMF  2EE
BREENMAREEERMDER R AEELERE
BEERTTREMBNEZEG  BRAAHEE
HP o BEERMERABEE - B ER2001F
100ABAREEERMDERAGMARER -

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weirong ([ 1 2), aged 52, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, as well as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, planning
and overall development. He is also the founder of the Group.
Mr. Chen graduated from # F T £ Bi(South China Institute of
Technology*, now known as Z g3 T K £, South China University
of Technology*) in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
Upon graduation, Mr. Chen started his career as a technician in &
EEERMD AR LT (Konka Group Company Limited*) in 1982,
a major consumer electronics manufacturing and distribution
enterprise in the PRC, and became its managing director in 1994
until 2001. In 1996, Mr. Chen was elected as “Outstanding Young
Entrepreneur of Shenzhen”, in 1997, he was awarded the “National
‘May 1st’ Labour Medal” (2 B[ L — |4 &) #E &) and in 1998, he
was elected as a representative in the Standing Committee of the
9th National People’s Congress. Mr. Chen has been the Chairman
of the Group since November 2001.

Mr. Liao Jie (B2 {4), aged 43, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He is also the general manager of MLCC division and is in charge
of the strategic planning and development of MLCC business of
the Group. Mr. Liao graduated from #E / 32 T X £ (Huazhong
University of Science and Technology*, now known as # & F}
¥ K E2) with a bachelor's degree in engineering in June 1990.
He obtained Master of Science specializing in electronics
components from # /1 I T KX & (Huazhong University of Science
and Technology*, now known as # /1 £l £ K £) in 1993. Upon
graduation, Mr. Liao joined Konka Group Company Limited as
a manager, responsible for supervising the quality control of
electronics raw materials. He was then transferred to the sales
division to take charge of the sales in Eastern China. Mr. Liao
joined the Group in October 2001 after he left Konka Group
Company Limited.

FrEER(EB)BRAQR
R -TEFER
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Mr. Xu Chuncheng (4% 3;), aged 49, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 May 2010. He also holds the position
of Chief Financial Officer of the Company, responsible for overall
financial and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Xu is the deputy
general manager of MLCC division of the Group since October
2009. Mr. Xu graduated from 58 = A 5 £ Pt (Hunan Normal
College*, now known as 4 7 Al €3 K 28, Hunan Normal University*)
in 1982 with a bachelor’'s degree in science. He obtained a
master's degree in quantitative economics from & Y & & & [
(Changsha Railway College*, now known as & g X £ Central
South University*) in 1987 and further obtained a doctoral degree
in international finance from the Graduate School of the People’s
Bank of China in 1996. From 1987 to 1992, he was the supervisor
of research division of The People’s Bank of China, Hunan Branch
where he was responsible for the research of macroeconomics and
finance. From 1994 to 1998, he was the deputy general manager
of international business and merchant banking divisions under
China Merchants Bank, Headquarters where he was responsible
for the management of foreign exchange policies and international
finance business. Prior to joining the Group in August 2006,
Mr. Xu worked at Konka Group and Konka Telecommunications
Technology as deputy chief financial officer and chief financial
officer respectively where he was in charge of strategic corporate
financial planning and international trading from 1998 to 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Shuang Mei (7 1), aged 43, was re-designated as Non-executive
Director from Executive Director of the Company in October 2009
following the disposal of the Company’s entire equity interest in
Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Limited*. She is now the general
manager of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd. Ms. Shuang
graduated from F R K £ (Nanjing University*) in 1991 with a
bachelor’s degree in arts and started her career as a journalist
for two newspapers until 1999. In 2000, she obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Lancaster,
and joined the Group in 2001.
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Mr. Chen Hao (B %), aged 45, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from # /1 38 T X £ (Huazhong
University of Science and Technology*, now known as # & £ 5
K B) with a bachelor's degree in computer science in 1989. He
has over 16 years of experience in the information technology
industry, especially in business management and operations, and
information technology applications/services. Mr. Chen joined
Legend Group in 1992. He was the founder and the general
manager of Legend Advanced System Ltd.. During his tenure,
he was responsible for strategic management and business
implementation. Mr. Chen founded Legend Capital, a venture
capital firm, in 2001, and has served as head of investment ever
since. He is currently a director of the company. He is responsible
for overall control and coordination of investment activities
at Legend Capital. Mr. Chan is also a director of a number of
information technology companies, including X 2 &l #1 8 {4 &
fit 5 B 2 7 (Worksoft Creative Software Tech., Ltd.*) (NYSE:
VIT), Spreadtrust Communications, Inc. (NASDAQ: SPRD) and
it R B I R B B HUlT B BR 2 & (Beijing Kaitone Information
Technologies Co., Ltd.*). He also serves as a director in a number
of investment companies. He was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Cheng Wusheng (22 4), aged 43, is a Non-executive Director
of the Company. He was regional manager of Konka Group
Company Limited and deputy general manager of PP £ E F4
[E A 7] (Shaanxi Konka Electronic Co., Ltd.*) from October 1990 to
June 1996. Through these positions, he was responsible for sales
and promotion of products. Mr. Cheng is currently the director of %
Y EFHE S AR A A (Shenzhen Jinmaixin Trading Co., Ltd.*)
and R I F 55 2 B % A R 2 7] (Shenzhen Nanhua Yaxing
Industrial Co., Ltd.*), both of which are trading companies. He has
shareholding interests in the Company through his wholly-owned
company WU SHENG Management Limited. He was appointed as
a Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Zhang Zhilin (5% 7 #&), aged 60, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company. He was the factory director of &8 R # [ & B
$E (7] 5 & 171 B3 E $% R (Shanghai Pudong Heging Town Xiangyang
Village Xiangyang Electroplating Factory*) from February 1981
to November 1985 and was also the factory director of /& @&
X & ¥ B 2 5 | (Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*)
from December 1985 to January 1994. As a factory director, he
was responsible for production operation and human resource
management. Mr. Zhang is currently the director of _- /2 B 4 5
A BR 2 7 (Shanghai Huali Packing Co., Ltd.*), F/8 =GB & #E
B & R A 7 (Shanghai Meiyang Precision Moulding Co., Ltd.*),
EBERE ¥ B AR (Shanghai Huiyang Industrial Co., Ltd.*),
5 = E R & B TR E AR AT (Shanghai Taihui LCD Co., Ltd.*),
and b8 H R EE ¥ B R G (Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics
Factory*), all of which are manufacturing companies. He was
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in April
2007.

FhEER(EE)ER A A
R -TEFER
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Wei (;&1&), aged 54, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Pan graduated from Jt 32 ] ] 2 fx (Beijing
Institute of Steel*, now known as 1t = & # K £, University of
Science and Technology Beijing*) with a bachelor’s degree in
physical chemistry in 1982. He obtained a master’s degree in
engineering and doctoral degree in engineering from Nagoya
University in 1987 and 1990 respectively. He is currently
a professor in the Department of Materials Science and
Engineering, Tsinghua University. Mr. Pan specialises in research
and educational projects, including thermal barrier materials,
transparent ceramic materials, nanomaterials and devices and
other conductive materials. He was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (’k & 77), aged 46, is the Company’s
independent non-executive Director since April 2007. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. Chu has over
20 years of experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting
and taxation. Mr. Chu is an executive director of Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited (F R 1% A BR A 7)) (stock code: 681)
and an independent non-executive director of Huayu Expressway
Group Limited (& 2 & & & ® & R 2 7)) (stock code: 01823)
and Flyke International Holdings Limited (7 53 B0 B2 % % 5 R A
7)) (stock code: 01998), During the period from September 2005
to March 2007 Mr. Chu was the executive director of Mastermind
Capital Limited (Z {2 & B R 2 &]) which was known as Haywood
Investments Limited during the relevant period. During the period
from, Mr. Chu was an independent non-executive director of Bright
Prosperous Holdings Limited (& & 1% % & & A 7)) (stock code:
723) from January 2008 to August 2010. Mr. Chu served Hong
Long Holdings Limited (% [ 3% % & IR 22 7)) (stock code: 1383)
as a company secretary during the period from January 2007
to September 2010, All of the aforementioned companies are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chu graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Master
Degree in Business Administration in 1998. Mr. Chu is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chu
is also an associate member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries.
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Mr. Liu Huanbin (2|42#), aged 69, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from # f T £ %
(South China Institute of Technology*, now known as % g 2
T K £, South China University of Technology*) in 1965 with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering. He holds professorship in
chemical engineering in I & 32 T X £ (South China University
of Technology*), and was later promoted to the principal of the
university for the tenure from May 1995 to September 2003. In
2001, Mr. Liu was awarded as a foreign academician by Academy
of Engineering of Russia. He is currently a professor in the
South China University of Technology. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Chuncheng, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
is responsible for the financial management of the Group, in
particular the financing of the Group’s short-term and long
term business development as well as capital expenditures.
The particulars of Mr. Xu Chuncheng are set out in the section
“Executive Directors” hereabove.

Mr. Leung Wai Chung, aged 47, is the Company Secretary,
Qualified Accountant and Authorised Representative of the
Company. His duties encompass corporate financing, listing
compliance, financial reporting and company secretary related
matters. Mr. Leung is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

FrEER(EB)BRAQR
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| hereby present the annual financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010 on behalf of the Board of the
Company.

In 2010, with the rapid popularization of the next-generation digital
products such as LCD TVs and 3G mobile phones, the overall
demand for electronic products picked up worldwide, which in turn
drove the demand for MLCC. However, the increase in the demand
for MLCC demand was subsequently followed by a downturn
during the year. Despite these changes, the Company leveraged
on the continued efforts across the Company in innovation,
increased the involvement in research and development,
enhanced its core competitiveness and captured favourable
market opportunities to further expand into the Mainland China
market. The Group recorded a substantial growth in its sales
revenue from its MLCC business in 2010.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the year, the Group’s sales revenue from MLCC was
RMB396.3 million, representing an increase of 32.0% over that
of 2009. Excluding the effect of a one-off gain from the disposal
of the mobile phone business in 2009, the profit from continuing
operations for the period increased by approximately 12% from
2009.

Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB34.0 million, representing an increase of 72.3% over that of
2009. Earnings per share increased to RMB8.4 cents this year from
RMB4.9 cents last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends, subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$3.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB2.5 cents) per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Currently, MLCC business is the Group’s only business. The
digital product industry being a cyclical industry, the Group’s
MLCC business as an upstream industry is inevitably subject
to the cyclical impact of the digital product industry. The Group
has effectively diversified its market risks by increasing sales
effort in the Mainland China market and shifting its market focus
to Mainland China successfully. In the meantime, the Group has
sharpened its competitive edge by enhancing the technological
innovation capabilities and optimizing the product mix of its MLCC
business. Nevertheless, as major developed economies such as
the U.S., Europe and Japan have not shown significant recovery,
the demand for MCLL products slowed down in the second half of
the year. This has resulted in a decrease in gross margin despite a
significant growth in the sales revenue from customers in Mainland
China.
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OUTLOOK

In 2011, volatility is expected to increase in the three major
economies including the United States, Europe and Japan. The
continued quantitative easing monetary policies implemented
in these economies since the outbreak of the financial crisis
have resulted in an excessive supply of liquidity worldwide.
Prices of commodities such as oil, coal and iron ore will see a
considerable rise. In Mainland China, imported inflation, coupled
with substantial accumulative foreign reserve, has also led to
excessive liquidity, which in turn resulted in increasing inflation
in the PRC. Bank lending rate has been increasing and RMB is
expected to appreciate more significantly against the world’s
major currencies because the central bank of the PRC has been
tightening its monetary policy since the second half of 2010. In
addition local governments across Mainland China have raised
minimum wages since the beginning of 2011. As a result, the
interest expenses of the Company will increase to a certain extent.
The Company will suffer from a loss on foreign exchange of trade
receivables denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars
and a significant increase in labour costs. These will have certain
adverse effect on the Group’s sales profit. As any other company
operating in the PRC, the Group has to adapt itself to the local
economic environment. The Group intends to mitigate the pressure
of rising interest rate on its interest expenses by enhancing
its capital turnover rate, reduce loss on foreign exchange by
increasing the percentage of sales revenue denominated in RMB
and relieve the profit pressure of rising labour costs on profit by
productivity enhancement through technical innovation.

APPRECIATION

| would also like to take this opportunity to thank all of our
customers and shareholders for their continuing support, our
directors for their guidance and insights, as well as our staff for
their dedication and efforts.

Chairman
Chen Weirong

18 March 2011
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2010, major developed economies such as the U.S., Europe
and Japan did not show significant recovery. However, due to the
advancement of technology and replacement of digital products,
the overall demand for electronic products picked up worldwide.
Facilitated by the domestic demand stimulation policies such as
the “Home Appliances Subsidy for Rural Villages” and “Appliances
Trade-in” launched by the PRC Government, the demand for
electronic products maintained a strong growth, which in turn
drove the demand for MLCC. While the Group primarily focused
on its MLCC business, the management of the Company seized
the market development trend and effectively through its further
technological advancement in MLCC business, optimization of
product portfolio so as to enhance the competitiveness of the
Company in an effective manner. In 2010, the Group’s revenue
from continuing operations for the period increased by 32%.
Excluding the impact of the disposal of mobile business in 2009
which recorded a one-off gain of 9.7 million, its profit before
tax from continuing operations for the period increased by
approximately 12% compared to that of 2009.

The profit after tax attributable to the shareholders of the Company
was RMB34.0 million in 2010, representing an increase of 72.3%
over that of 2009.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2011, major developed economies will either continue its
sluggish recovery or cease from recession, which are both
favorable to the global economic growth. Nevertheless, as the
majority of local governments implement strong intervention
measures on its economy in the process of combating global
financial crisis, the side effects will surface in 2011 and the next
few years. As a result, the global economic fluctuation and the off-
balance situation in the economic structure are expected to be
intensified. Given the cyclical nature of digital products sector, the
industry will fluctuate more vigorously and the conditions in the
industry will further deteriorate. As a supplier of MLCC products,
the Group is situated at the upstream position of the digital
industry, which will encounter an even more complicated business
environment.

In the Mainland China, the Central Government has tightened its
monetary policy in order to tame inflation and control the excessive
price hikes, in particular that of daily consumer goods. Therefore, it
is expected that the monetary policy will be further tightened up in
2011. In order to achieve a balanced and stable national economic
development, the domestic demand and consumption stimulation
policies launched by the Central Government will remain
unchanged. To a certain extent, it will stimulate the consumption
of electronic as well as digital products, which in turn increase the
demand for MLCC.
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In the coming year, it is expected that RMB against the world’s
major currencies will have a significant appreciation. Meanwhile,
the tightened monetary policy in the Mainland China makes
enterprises more prudent in the formulation of investment,
procurement, production and sales plans, thus making an impact
on the sales and punctual payment of the Group’s MLCC products.
Although the Group can still manage to obtain the feedback of
MLCC demand information faster than its competitors in other
areas as the Group is based in the Pearl River Delta, one of the
world’s major electronic products processing centers, challenges
will be posed to the Group’s operation since the Pearl River
Delta is one of the traditional regions in the Mainland China
where labour supply is relatively tight. In addition, the fact that
local governments have substantially increased the standards
of minimum wage, social insurance and housing provident
fund make the situation even more challenging. Despite of
the continuous surge of labour cost in the Mainland China in a
long run, the management believes that the pressures can be
transformed into motivations through technological upgrades,
innovative management measures, enhanced labour efficiency
and accelerated industrial upgrade and replacement as well
as industrial diversification, maximizing the benefits for the
shareholders. The management is optimistic about the prospect of
the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

PRIMARY REVENUE

The revenue of the Group’s MLCC business for 2010 was
approximately RMB396.3 million, representing a 32.0% increase
over that of 2009. This was mainly because the Group’s
management had put a greater deal of efforts in the market
development, as well as the realization of capacity of new facilities
investments.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit of the Group’s MLCC business for 2010 was RMB87.9
million, representing an increase of approximately 20.1% from that
of 2009. The increase was mainly due to the growth in the revenue
from MLCC sales.

GROSS MARGIN

The gross margin of the Group’s MLCC business for 2010 was
22.2%, representing a 2.2% decrease from the gross margin of
24.4% in 2009. This was mainly due to a drop in the average selling
price of MLCC.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Other income and gain of the Group for 2010 were RMB7.4 million,
representing a substantial decrease as compared to that of 2009.
This was mainly due to the elimination of the factor of the disposal
of SZ Eycom, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, resulting in an
increase in investment gain of RMB9.7 million in year 2009, which
offset the increase in lease income of investment properties for the
period.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for 2010 were
RMB10.3 million, representing a 7.4% increase over that of 2009.
This was mainly due to the increasing input in the market for the
increase in market share.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2010 were RMB18.2
million, representing a 7.6% decrease as compared to that of 2009.
This was mainly due to write-off of the social insurance expenses
of RMB2.8 million which were provided over 2 years but not yet
payable during the year.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The research and development costs of the Group for 2010 were
RMB9.4 million, representing a 51.8% surge over that of 2009.
This was mainly due to the upgrade of the core competitiveness
of the Company’s products, as well as a greater research and
development engagement at this moment in the hi-tech MLCC
products worldwide.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses of the Group for 2010 were RMB7.6 million,
representing a 7.0% decrease from that of 2009. This was mainly
due to the option expenses in 2010 dropped approximately by
RMB1.0 million as compared to that of 2009.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs of the Group for 2010 were RMB7.1 million,
representing a RMB5.4 million increase over that of 2009. This was
mainly due to the fact that: 1. an increase in interest expenses was
incurred by the increased bank loans during the year; 2. as the
credit policy of banks was tightened in 2010, an additional credit
utilization payment was required in order to secure the bank credit.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses of the Group for 2010 amounted to
approximately RMB8.7 million, representing an increase of RMB6.6
million from that of 2009. The reason for the substantial increase
in the income tax expenses included: 1. a write back for corporate
income tax of RMB3.7 million was reversed in 2009, but there was
no more such tax related reversal in 2010. At the same time, as the
gain from the disposal of a subsidiary of RMB9.7 million in 2009
was not taxable. It was excluded from the impact of the above
events, the effective income tax paid in 2009 was RMB6.8 million
while the taxable profit and effective tax rate were RMB34.5 million
and 20.2% respectively. 2. Since Hong Kong Eyang Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary which has an applicable income
tax rate of 25% for being a resident enterprise for the purpose of
income tax in the Mainland China, had recorded a greater earning
due to an increase in trading business, representing an increase in
income tax of approximately RMB1.2 million as compared to that of
2009, which had driven up the average tax liability of the Group.

A 15% preferential tax rate was applicable to Shenzhen Eyang
Technology Development Co., Ltd., which is engaged in the
Group’s main business, and its subsidiary in Dongguan. In
addition, the deferred income tax liabilities had to be recognized
based on a 5% of the distributable profits recorded by the Group’s
subsidiaries located in the Mainland China in 2010. As a result, the
effective income tax rate of the Group in 2010 was 20.4%, which is
fairly in line with that of 2009 when the effect of those non-recurring
factors are excluded.

GEARING RATIO

The Group monitors its capital through gearing ratio, being net
liabilities divided by capital and net liabilities. Net liabilities are
determined as the aggregate of interest-bearing bank loans, trade
and bills payables and other payables (excluding accruals and
deferred income within one year) less cash and cash equivalent.
Capital refers to the equity attributable to the owners of the parent.
As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the gearing ratio of the Group
was approximately 21.1% and 23.4% respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2010 was RMB263.9
million, representing an increase of RMB18.6 million from that
of 2009. The increase was mainly due to the combined impact
of the following factors: 1. an amount of RMB13.9 million was
reclassified to investments properties as a result of leasing out
certain vacant properties by the Group; 2. the depreciation of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB25.8
million for the period; and 3. the addition of MLCC manufacturing
equipment of approximately RMB57.8 million in 2010 and also a
construction expense on the new Anhui Jineyang plants of RMB7.6
million.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties for 2010 amounted to RMB29.7
million, representing an increase of RMB13.3 million over that
of 2009. This was mainly due to the increased demand for the
Group’s vacant properties as the Mainland China was among the
first economies to recover from the global financial crisis.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The other intangible assets of the Group for 2010 amounted
to RMB1.37 million, representing a decrease of RMB0.17
million when compared to that of 2009. This was mainly due to
the amortisation of intangible assets associated with the SAP
management software.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The trade and bills receivables of the Group were mainly
the amount due from the Group’s MLCC customers. As at
31 December 2010, the net book values of trade and bills
receivables were RMB153.1 million, representing an increase of
21.2% over that of 2009. The increase in trade and bills receivables
was mainly attributable to the increase in sales revenue of the
Group by 32% in 2010 over that of 2009.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
As at 31 December 2010, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of the Group were RMB12.8 million, representing an
increase of RMB4.3 million from that of 2009. This was mainly
due to an increase in external prepayment of the material and
equipment purchased and an increase in third party rental charges
receivables and utility charges prepaid in 2010.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGES BANK
DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2010, cash and cash equivalents and pledges
bank deposits of the Group were RMB66.6 million, representing an
increase of RMB4.9 million from that of 2009. It was mainly due to
the significant increase in income and enhancement of collection
in trade and bills receivables.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2010, the balance of the Group’s trade
payables was increased by approximately RMB9.4 million from
that at the end of 2009, while the balance of bills payables
decreased by RMB34.0 million. These were mainly due to: 1.
the increase in the balance of trade payables as a result of an
expanded production capacity and thus a corresponding growth
in the purchase of raw materials as compared with previous years;
2. the bills payables of RMB34.0 million at the end of 2009 were
issued to DG Eyang by SZ Eyang, DG Eyang discounted those
bills payables to secure short term capital financing. As at the
beginning of 2010, the bills payables were settled and there was
no impact in respect of the above matters at the period end.
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DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2010, deferred income, accruals and other
payables of the Group were RMB33.2 million, representing an
increase of RMB6.6 million from that of 2009. The increase in
deferred income, accruals and other payables was mainly due
to the corresponding increase in year end bonus, which led
to an increase in staff remuneration payables at the end of the
year. At the same time, the expansion of production capacity,
the outstanding amount of the purchase of fixed assets and the
construction costs of Anhui Jineyang also increased as compared
with that at the end of 2009.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had outstanding Interest-
bearing bank loans of RMB110.7 million, representing an increase
of RMB46.8 million over that of 2009, and the loans were mainly
used to boost the production and sales of MLCC and maintain the
Company’s liquidity.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2010, the capital commitments of the Group
were RMB14.9 million, representing a decrease of RMB4.7 million
over that of 2009, which was mainly due to the decrease in the
Group’s purchase of equipment which had not yet been delivered.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Net current asset

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB127.3 million, including current assets of
RMB343.8 million and current liabilities of RMB216.5 million.

RenEg Cash flows
BZ12B31BLEE
For the year ended
31December
20105 20094
ARBEEBR | ARBEET
@estEm AL GRH)  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 30.6 (45.4)
BIR & F 5

WEEE R AR £ F 5 Net cash outflow from investing activities (56.8) (71.4)
BEEB R AR EFE Net cash inflow from financing activities 29.5 46.2
FRHE S KRS EZEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 66.1 61.7
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As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s remaining balance of cash
and cash equivalents increased by RMB4.9 million from that of 31
December 2009. It was mainly due to:

1) The Group’s cash inflow from operating activities of
RMB30.6 million, which was mainly due to the increase in
trade receivables being offset by the significant increase in
revenue and the decrease in bills payables;

2) The Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities of
RMB56.8 million, which was mainly due to the increase in
expenditure for purchasing equipment and construction
works.

3) Net cash inflow from financing activities of RMB29.5 million,
which was due to the increase in bank loans.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately RMB336.5 million, of which
approximately RMB225.8 million had not been utilized.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

In 2010, the Group’s sales were mainly denominated in RMB,
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars, while its purchases were
mainly denominated in RMB, US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and
Japanese Yen. The trade receivables denominated in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars were greater than the trade payables
denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Meanwhile,
the Group is exposed to risks in respect of trade payables
denominated in Japanese Yen, but is basically not exposed to
risks in respect of trade receivables denominated in Japanese Yen.
In the event of vigorous fluctuation of the exchange rate, foreign
currencies risk will exist to a certain extent.

STAFF

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had a total of
1,433 staff, whose remunerations and benefits are determined
based on the market, state policies and individual performance.
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The Company has adopted the applicable code provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) to promote a high level of
stewardship to ensure its corporate sustainability and to deliver
values to its shareholders and employees. They also help the
Board ensure an efficient disposition of the Company’s resources
in achieving the goals. Assessment on the Company’s practice
of and compliance with the CG code by the Board of Directors is
on an on-going basis to attain a high standard of performance,
transparency and accountability.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company and considers that the Company has complied with the
CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2010, save for the
exception that is stated and explained below.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board and directors’ background

The Board is responsible for all major strategic planning of the
Company, review on and approval of all major management
and operation policies so as to achieve the Group’s objectives.
Following the re-designation of Ms. Shuang Mei as Non-
executive Director in October 2009, the Board appointed Mr. Xu
Chuncheng as Executive Director in May 2010 whose finance
related expertise could enhance the management of the Company.
As at 31 December 2010, there were 10 members in the Board
comprising 3 Executives Directors, 4 Non-executive Directors and
3 Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Executive Directors of the Board participate in the Group’s
daily operation and management, monitoring the performance of
the senior management with reference to the approved planning
and objectives. The Non-executive Directors, although not
involved in the Group’s daily operation, provide the Group with
valuable suggestions and constructive ideas with regard to the
Group’s strategies and management. The three Independent
Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment and
advices for the purpose of check and balance. One of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the necessary
professional qualification and expertise in accounting and financial
management and serves as the chairman of the Company’s audit
committee.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 6
to 10 of this annual report. The composition of the Board and the
Committees of the Board are given below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman) (Chief Executive Officer and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liao Jie

Mr. Xu Chuncheng

Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Shuang Mei (member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Mr. Chen Hao

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of both Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Pan Wei (member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the Directors. Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules each of the three Independent Non-executive
Directors has submitted to the Company an annual written
confirmation of his independence and the Company still considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Responsibilities

The tasks of the Board include setting main objectives of the
Group and devising strategic planning for the development of the
Group’s business. The Board also defines the corporate values
and standards to ensure that the management and all other
staff carry out their works in good faith and in the best interest of
shareholders. Significant company’s activities like acquisition and
disposal transactions, connected transactions, investments and
capital expenditures are thoroughly discussed in the Board and
other committee meetings with contribution from the Independent
Non-executive Directors.

Duties of daily operation and execution of the Group’s plans
have been delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
senior management and the Board constantly supervises the
management and monitors their performance in meeting the
preset goals and objectives.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Articles of Association of the Company clearly lay out the
proper procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors. It also requires that at least one-third of the
directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for
re-election at the annual general meeting. All Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) of the
Company have been appointed for a term of three years from
the date of their appointments. A nomination committee was set
up in 2008 to perform the role and duty of nominating competent
candidates to join the Board. The Board from time to time reviews
the composition of the Board to ensure members of the Board have
sufficient expertise, knowledge and experience in directing the
business of the Group.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Liu Huanbin. The main
duties of the Committee are to review the financial statements and
financial and accounting policies of the Company and oversee
the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2010 the Audit Committee
met twice and reviewed the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, report of internal
audit department on the Company’s internal control and risk
management review and the re-appointment of the external
auditors. The Committee had not taken a different view from that
of the Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors. The Group’s annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2010 had been discussed, reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Weirong and Ms. Shuang Mei and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin
(Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policies and structure and remuneration packages of the
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration packages.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration of the directors and senior management with
reference to the skill, knowledge, experience and the tasks
assigned and also to the individual performance and the overall
profitability of the Company. In determining the remuneration
package, the Remuneration Committee also obtained reports,
surveys and relevant information from external source for the
competitive level of remuneration and market trend for the
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
formed an opinion that the current directors’ fee to the directors
and remuneration to the senior management for their duties and
responsibilities undertaken were commensurate with the market
level.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee’s major duties are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors according to the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee reviews the composition of the Board
whenever necessary to meet the business demands, opportunities
and challenges and to comply with the laws and regulations. The
Nomination Committee will select and evaluate the balance of
skills, qualification, knowledge and experience of the candidate
to the directorship as may be required by the Company from
time to time by such means as the Company may deems fit. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the candidate from a wide
range of backgrounds, on his/her merits and against objective
criteria set out by the Board and taking into consideration his/her
time devoted to the position and independence as independent
non-executive directors.

All newly appointed directors will be provided with an induction
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and of the responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.
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Board Meeting

Regular board meetings are held for directors to discuss and
determine the strategies of the Group, monitor the execution of
plans, review the Group’s business performance and financial
reporting as well as all other material matters. Notice of the Board
meeting is given at 14 days in advance to all directors, and the
agenda of all related document are prepared and dispatched to
all directors by the company secretary at least 3 days before the
meeting to ensure all directors have sufficient information and
relevant material when preparing for the meetings. The company
secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping minutes of all
board and committee meetings. All directors have full access to
the advice and services of the company secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Details of directors’ attendance at the meetings of Board,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out
below:

HEEBEAE
BE_ZF-2F+-A=t—-HLHEE
Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2010

FMEEE REZEEY

BEEHA - EREER Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Board Audit Committee Committee Committee
PRIZ &R % &E 5/5 i A 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chen Weirong N/A
gL 3/5 T8 A 11 38
Ms. Shuang Mei N/A N/A
BEE A 5/5 A 3 A i A
Mr. Liao Jie N/A N/A N/A
BREGHEE(R_ZE—ZF 1/5 T E A A iE A iE A

AA—HEZMT) N/A N/A N/A
Mr. Xu Chuncheng

(appointed on 1 May 2010)
BRAELE 3/5 3 A 3 A 3
Mr. Cheng Wusheng N/A N/A N/A
TEREE 1/5 T E A N iE A N iE A
Mr. Li Heqiu N/A N/A N/A
REMEE(RE—ZF 1/5 @ A T E A 3

AA=+—HET) N/A N/A N/A
Mr. Zhang Zhilin

(resigned on 31 May 2010)
R ok % A 2/5 TEMA i A N iE A
Mr. Chen Hao N/A N/A N/A
EEEE 1/5 1/2 1/1 i A
Mr. Pan Wei N/A
Rt - 2/5 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Liu Huanbin
NN 2/5 2/2 11 01

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not have a separate chairman and chief Executive officer
and Mr. Chen Weirong, currently holds both positions. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides the Group
with strong and consistent leadership, allows for more effective
planning and execution of long-term business strategies and
enhances the efficiency of decision-making process in response to
the changing environment.

The three independent non-executive directors provide the Board
with independent judgment and views from different perspectives
and ensure that the interests of concerned parties can be
taken into account and proper processes are followed to avoid
possible conflict of interests. The Board therefore believes that the
Company already has a strong corporate governance structure
in place with adequate check and balances. The Board from time
to time reviews the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
corporate governance structure and performance so as to assess
whether any changes are necessary in the future.

Model Code for Dealing In Securities by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than that
required under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made
of each director of the Board, all directors confirm that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2010.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board, with the assistance by the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer, are responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts
for each financial period with a view to ensuring such accounts
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards and the Board
reviews those accounting policies as selected and applied to
ensure that appropriate judgment and estimates be made in a
prudent and reasonable manner.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 38 to 39 of this annual
report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

Ernst & Young are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the annual consolidated financial
statements. During the year, the total remuneration payable to the
Company’s external auditor amounted to RMB0.98 million, with
breakdown as follows:

P 12 11 AR 7% Bt ENEA
Services rendered Fee paid/payable
% H R 7% ARE098EE T
Audit services RMB0.98 million
FEAZ B 7S it
Non-audit services nil
BET ARBE0.98H & 7T
Total RMB0.98 million

AR EE 4%

ARRER —EXZHRARZIBAREERIAR
WHXHZAMEERR - BIRAEE 2 &
BERBABELG ARARFRBBEHMERPR
FRHENEERARETEZEBT - FERGL
TWEREREBERMERFILINREARET
MEE  NRAEEERUSKHZEERESIT
RRRZM - ARAEF —EET RG> Wik
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NERABEERREREE -

IR R B
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Internal Control

The Company maintains a comprehensive and effective internal
control system on income and capital and revenue expenditures.
In view of strengthening the control and reporting system of the
Group, the Company overhauled the information management
system during the year by implementing a new ERP system. The
new system has streamlined the gathering and management of
business information and speeded up the process of reporting
so as to give the management latest information of operation for
the management’s analysis and decision making. The Company
has maintained a system of internal control with manuals guiding
internal controls on business operation. The Board from time to
time reviews internal control system to ensure sufficient resources
and manpower are allocated to maintain the effective operation of
the internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted the policy of effective communication
with shareholders for promoting higher transparency of
the Company’s operation activities and greater investors’
understanding of the Company’s business. The Company’s
website contains up-to-date information on the Company’s
business developments. The practice of timely disclosures of
information with high degree of integrity is consistently observed
to allow shareholders and any other parties concerned to make
judgment.

Given the fact that the annual general meeting is the most
important platform for shareholders to express their views and ask
questions about the performance and policies of the Company,
notices and circulars regarding the annual general meeting and
other general meetings are given in well advance to ensure that
shareholders have sufficient time and information to prepare for the
meetings.
FHEREBR)AER AR
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The Board is pleased to present the report for the year ended 31
December 2010, together with its audited financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of its subsidiaries are set in note 19 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 40.

The Board did not declare an interim dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2010. The Board recommends,
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the payment of a final
dividend of HK$3.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: HK$2.6 cents). The final dividend will
be paid on or about 13 June 2011 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company as at the close
of business on Friday, 6 May 2011.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 4 May 2011 to Friday, 6 May 2011 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should lodge all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 3 May 2011.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as revised) and
subject to the articles of association of the Company, the share
premium may be distributed to its shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
liabilities due in the course of ordinary business. In the opinion of
the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution as
at 31 December 2010 were approximately RMB37,107,000 (2009:
RMB49,747,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and fixed
assets of the Company are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The current directors of the Company during the year and as of the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie

Mr. Xu Chuncheng (appointed on 1 May 2010)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Shuang Mei

Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Li Heqiu (resigned on 31 May 2010)
Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

In accordance the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation at every annual general meeting of the Company. Pursuant
to Article 87(1), Mr. Chen Weirong, Ms. Shuang Mei, Mr. Liao
Jie and Mr. Zhang Zhilin shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.
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STATUS OF INDEPENDENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and it still considers all
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Each Executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company commencing on 21 December 2010 for a term of
3 years until termination by giving no less than 3 months’ written
notice to the other party or pursuant to the terms of the service
contract.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of 3 years commencing on 21 December 2010. The
engagement shall comply with the directors’ retirement and
rotation provisions in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

Save as disclosed above, no director has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is expiring within
one year or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
The Company has no service contract with the directors with a term
of more than 3 years or not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors is determined
based on their respective terms of service agreement (if any). The
directors’ fee is reviewed annually and approved and authorized
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting. Details of
remuneration paid and to be paid to the Company’s directors for
the financial year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the connected transactions as stated in the report, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principles and practices of corporate governance of the
Company is set out under the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 20 to 26.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
where the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders of the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of directors and senior management are set out
on page 6 to page 10 in the report.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

At 31 December 2010, the directors’ interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

ZEREE
Number of ordinary shares
HERITRA
MR
BMOBFDL
pisle] Approximate
B#HHEE? percentage of
ExER AEER Number of total interests
EERE Beneficial Corporate underlying By in the share
Name of Director Interests Interests shares Total in issue
FRIZE S &
Mr. Chen Weirong — 143,044,000 1,400,000 144,444,000 35.62%
FopicRegu
Ms. Shuang Mei 424,000 18,000,000 @ 1,300,000 19,724,000 4.86%
B E
Mr. Liao Jie — 18,000,000 @ 1,300,000 19,300,000 4.76%
Mr. Xu Chuncheng — 3,299,000 “ 2,000,000 5,299,000 1.31%
BRE%E
Mr. Cheng Wusheng — 16,174,000 ® — 16,174,000 3.99%
o B &
Mr. Zhang Zhilin — 23,106,000 © — 23,106,000 5.70%
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(1 B {2 48 % 4 & % % BEversharp Management Limited
([Eversharp)) B # 17 % ZX 100% -+ iMEversharp
8] & & # AEY SHINE Management Limited ([EY
Shinel) B #1TIRA36.71% - FRIELKE L IREEZHE
Everbright Management Limited 2 217 J§ 7~53.15% °
fEverbright Management LimitedB] # AEY Shine
2 3 17 B 7X 19.40% ° EY Shine® ’% # AEY Ocean
Management Limited ([EY Ocean]) 100% * (fEY
Oceanf# B 7% 2 7143,044,000 8% B& 17 #E 25 - 5t & &
R EIE G DI EXVE M 5 - BR1E 5 5 £ AR B REY
OceanfF B HIFTARM P A E = -

@) 7E 1§ 22 + & %  BHE-YANG Management Limited,
1T IR AN100% © MHE-YANG Management Limited 8l
% & ¥ BEY ShineB ¥ 17 I8 X 12.58% ° EY Shine&
JE#EBEY Ocean 100% ° Bz T A MMEZEFE B L
18,000,000% A% 15 °

3) B 5 K A K ¥ BLJ Management Limited 2 2 17
fi% 7 100% - TMLJ Management Limitedll & 3% # &
EY Shinet # 17 % & 12.58% ° EY Shine& % # BEY
Ocean 100% © B {5 4 4 [ i f £ #5549 18,000,000
AR 15 ©

(4) A 5 4 A SR HE B Everbright B 1T AR A 11.89%
MEverbrightBl] # BEY Shine 17 i 4 19.40% °
It - RS A B B AN A B 493,299,000% AR 17 ©

(5) 5 %D AWUSHENG Management Limited &
BRELCEHEAZRRDETRANREEZ100% °

(6) i L AR 15 AZHILIN Management LimitedfT# A& -+ 9k
EMEEEEZRAE BETRAREEZ100% °

(7) 5 % 15 K 3R 72007 F 11 A 30 B B £ F3 A0 8 A& 4 &1
BITHREERERER  BRESIFAERINER
AX[ BRI B —5& -

B EXET#HEEI  R2010F 128318 » &
RAAFBEERSRITERAE(BEELEB RIS
BATFR)BFESIRGEFERRRHEEM
HEEE (T & R EH R E KRG EXVID) /%
? - HEROKIESFNEREDZIORE °

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

Notes:

(1) Mr. Chen Weirong legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of Eversharp
Management Limited (“Eversharp”), which in turn legally owned 36.71% of the
issued share capital of EY SHINE Management Limited (“EY Shine”). Mr. Chen
Weirong also legally owned 53.15% of the issued share capital of Everbright
Management Limited which in turn owned 19.40% of the issued share capital of
EY Shine. EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean Management Limited (“EY
Ocean”) which was interested in 143,044,000 shares of the Company. For the
purposes of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chen Weirong was deemed to be interested in
all the shares held by EY Ocean.

2) Ms. Shuang Mei legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of HE-YANG
Management Limited, which in turn legally owned 12.58% of the issued share
capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owns 100% of EY Ocean. Ms. Shuang Mei
therefore was indirectly interested in approximately 18,000,000 shares.

(3) Mr. Liao Jie legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of LJ Management
Limited, which in turn legally owned 12.58% of the issued share capital of EY Shine.
EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean. Mr. Liao Jie therefore was indirectly
interested in approximately 18,000,000 shares.

(4) Mr. Xu Chuncheng legally owned 11.89% of the issued capital of Everbright which
in turn owns 19.40% of EY Shine, therefore Mr. Xu was indirectly interested in
approximately 3,299,000 shares of the Company.

(5) These shares were owned by WUSHENG Management Limited of which Mr. Cheng
Wusheng had 100% equity interest of the issued share capital.

(6) These shares were owned by ZHILIN Management Limited of which Mr. Zhang
Zhilin had 100% equity interest of the issued share capital.

(7) These represented interests in the share options granted under the share option
scheme adopted on 30 November 2007, further details of the share option scheme
are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” hereof.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
directors nor the chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had or was deemed
to have any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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FTERFRWES SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

BAATEEREEEBHREL  MN20105E128  So far as the directors and management of the Company were

31H F REFZALEEKRIIEIIEBEIFERE aware, as at 31 December 2010, shareholders (other than the

CMEEEsE  MARARIRM SR M E AR  directors and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest

HAKENRB (AR ESLIRITHAER  orshort position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares as

SM)YEATT recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

e %17

B% 2 48 49

Aokt

¥  Approximate

B EE percentage of

RERERE B 7 Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Notes shares held capital

EY Ocean Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
EY SHINE Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Eversharp Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Legend New-Tech Investment Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Right Lane Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Bt 84% I% 5 IR /A Fl(Legend Holding Limited*) 2 26,910,000 6.64%

R E P E A & E & 2 B BR A 5)(Chinese Academy

of Sciences Interest of a controlled corporation®) 2 26,910,000 6.64%
A8 4 BE A IR A A) Bt T 5 A% & (Employees’ Shareholding

Society of Legend

Holding Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
HEQ Management Limited 3 20,795,000 5.13%
ZHILIN Management Limited 4 23,106,000 5.70%
* ERHE * For identification purposes only
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% % N A Al 2 143,044,000 B E i@ A& FREY Ocean
Management Limited ([EY Ocean]) & % # & ° EY
Ocean/5EY Shine Management Limited ([EY Shine|)
Z & & F A 7] ° Eversharp Management Limited
([Eversharpl) & 5 # BEY Shinel % 17 I8 & M
36.71%# % * 1GEY Shineg R AR H =5 2 — A
+ ° Eversharp[ il #% 1% & # BEY Oceanit B M FT A
RS - A RRRITEEREIRRERLEER
W HEversharp 8 1T AR A #)100% 4 = °

Legend New-Tech Investment Limited ([ Legend New-
Tech]) & 25 # A A~ A 7]26,910,000% % 15 ° Legend
New-Tech7T ARight Lane Limited ([Right Lane]) 2 &
EF A o BB iRk A R A [ A & B ARight Lane
LimitedE TR A50% - TMERM AR EAEE
Right Lane Limited 2 1T IR A 82 T50% ° HI{EE1ER
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TIRA25% - FEAREBREAFLEELLEERARE
HHEAMBIERERARDBEITRGBEKES%
GBIEREBRARBIFREEEHEE R T35%H
BEITRG -

ZA BB XA AR F)20,795,0000 5 - Z A RIH
RE BT EHREEHEE100% - TEF AL ESER

EIARAESE TEN2010F5831BBHZAR
AIRRBEFRAGHEREGEMT -

%A R Bz A 78 2§ 23,106,000/ K9 B 17 © A A
BAREFEAITE R REMEEREF100%
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Notes:

These 143,044,000 ordinary shares in the Company were beneficially owned by
EY Ocean Management Limited (“EY Ocean”). EY Ocean was a wholly owned
subsidiary of EY Shine Management Limited (“EY Shine”). Eversharp Management
Limited (“Eversharp”) was beneficially interested in 36.71% of the issued capital
of EY Shine, representing more than one-third of voting shares in EY Shine.
Eversharp was therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares held by EY
Ocean. Mr. Chen Weirong, the executive director and chairman of the Company,
was beneficially interested in 100% of issued capital of Eversharp.

Legend New-Tech Investment Limited (“Legend New-Tech”) was beneficially
interested in 26,910,000 shares of the Company. Legend New-Tech was also a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Right Lane Limited (“Right Lane”). B 48 1% J% & R 2 7
(Legend Holding Limited*) legally owned 50% of the issued share capital of Right
Lane Limited and also owned the remaining 50% of the issued share capital of
Right Lane Limited as a beneficiary of two trusts. Liu Chuanzhi was holding 25%
of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on behalf
of Legend Holding Limited. Zhang Zuxiang was holding 25% of the issued share
capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on behalf of Legend Holding
Limited./r B &l Bz [ A & & & 4 A R 2 7 (Chinese Academy of Sciences
Holdings Co., Ltd.*) beneficially owned 65% of the total issued shares of B 48
P2 A% & IR A 7 (Legend Holding Limited*) andB$ A8 2 iR A /R A A1 Bk TH R &
(Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holding Limited*) legally owned the
remaining 35% of the issued shares.

The company, which beneficially owned the 20,795,000 shares of the Company,
was 100% owned by a former director Mr. Li Hegiu who did not seek re-election as
a director of the Company and resigned from his office upon the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2010.

The company, which beneficially owned the 23,106,000 shares of the Company,
was 100% owned by Mr. Zhang Zhilin, a non-executive director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other person who had an interest or short position in the
Company’s shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange and as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO, or was otherwise a substantial shareholder (as such term
is defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Summaries of the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by all shareholders of the Company on 30
November 2007 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the movement of options granted under the Share

FIRERERENESFEBFTOT Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2010 were as
follows:
#0105 H2010%
1A1H 12A318
B R AT REH REE REE REE  MRTE
SRRSEE Oustanding  w®%  AFE  ARK e Outstanding
HeBRER ERGEE as at Granted  Exercised  Forfeited  Cancelled asat el
Name or category of BYRH Exercise price 1 January during during during during 31 December  Exercise
eligible participants Date of grant per share 2010  theperiod  theperiod  theperiod  the period 2010 period
g3
Directors
REXEE 200841 A22H 10527 1400000 - - - - 1400000 3
Mr. Chen Weirong 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
RigRt 200841 A22H 1052%7 1300000 - - - - 1300000 *
Ms. Shuang Mei 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 ¥
S 20081 A 22H 105287 12300000 - - - - 1300000 #
Mr. Liao Jie 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
1Nt
Sub-fotal 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
BREEAS
BER A
RERSEE(BE) 200841 A22H 10527 16,400,000 - - 2000000 - 14,400,000 ¥
Senior management,
Employees and
Other qualifying
participants (in aggregate) 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
agy
Total 20,400,000 - 2,000,000 - 18,400,000
* BB BEmRAZMEEI0 *  Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements for details.
BEROIES 2L H ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES
br Bt EREET EION REARNARRAAIHEE  Other than the above share option scheme, at no time during the

AMEARRARB ZER AR HZERAFZ
TREMERAR  UEFHLZHEARNEFTAR
B AL A S AT AR H At R AR 4D S (B 55 T ZE X

ER
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year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding
companies of the Company or any subsidiaries of its holdings
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
The Company’s directors had no interests in any business that may
compete with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the
market as at the date of the report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed shares of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2010.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
During the year, the Company had no contract entered into
in respect of the management or administration of the overall
business or any material business.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company'’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the percentage of purchases from the major
suppliers of the Group to total purchases of the Group is as follow:

Percentage of purchases from the largest supplier

of the Group to total purchases: 15.4%
Percentage of purchases from
top five suppliers of the Group to total purchases 48.2%

No directors nor their associates have interests in the above
suppliers.

During the year, the percentage of sales from the major customers
of the Group to the total sales of goods and services of the Group

is as follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of

the Group to total sales of goods and services 12.2%
Goods and services sold by the Group
to its top five customers during the year 34.2%

None of the directors, nor their associates or any shareholders
holding more than 5% of the share capital of the Company has an
interest in the customers referred to above.
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e o RE B FRINFEHERFIEBRIEIF
GrRIEBEEMLCCE Ml L IREWRE - #
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T — MR ERRRRARR — R R B EER
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Agreements with SZ Eycom

Terms of the agreements

On 4 September 2009, Z Y T F 5 B K & R B R 2 7] ("SZ
Eyang”) entered into new leasing agreements with & 3| ™ &
@R A B A 7 (“SZ Eycom”) with respect to the premises
occupied by SZ Eycom. On the same date SZ Eyang and SZ
Eycom entered a purchase agreement with respect to the supply
of MLCC products by SZ Eyang to SZ Eycom. Both the new leasing
agreements and MLCC supply agreement would take effect on
the completion of disposal of SZ Eycom by the Company. The
directors, including the independent non-executive directors,
were of the view that the terms of the new leasing agreements
and MLCC supply agreement were in normal commercial terms
and in ordinary and usual course of business of the Company.
The above leasing agreements and MLCC supply agreement
fell under the definition of continuous connected transactions
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the maximum aggregate annual
cap of the leasing agreements and MLCC supply agreement
was RMB3,572,328, which was below 2.5% of the applicable
percentage ratios and therefore subject to reporting and
announcement requirements only in accordance with Rule 14A.34
of the Listing Rules.

BHEHFE LR Proposed annual caps
BE+-A=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—EEBNF —E-EF —E——fF
2009 2010 2011
ARETF T AR®T T ARBTFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MG = New leasing agreements 216.7 866.9 866.9
MLCCH & 177 :% MLCC supply agreement 743.9 2,705.4 2,447.7
#Et Total 960.6 3,572.3 3,314.6

MR2010F12A318  BREFHERE N 2H
SRBBEFINERBEMLCCHERZETZ
RERES RO A ARS7,000T R ARE
2,660,0007T (20094 : 9 Bl & A R #181,0007T
M AR #657,0007T) °

RIE LR FE14A371K - KR BB IFHTT
EXZCEMNLBEHERFGARRAERD
(VEAKEN—RBEBEBKBRETET ()R
B—MRIEEBEGRERE » R(iNRBEEEZRD
1 & IR KT o
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As at 31 December 2010, the total rental paid under the new
leasing agreements and total purchase by SZ Eycom under the
MLCC supply agreement was approximately RMB867,000 and
RMB2,660,000 respectively (2009: RMB181,000 and RMB657,000
respectively).

Pursuant to the Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
above continuing connected transactions have been (i) carried
out in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group; (ii)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (iii) entered into in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements.
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The Company’s auditor has also confirmed that the above-stated
continuing connected transactions (i) have been approved by the
Board of the Company; (ii) have been entered into on terms of the
agreement of relevant transactions; and (iii) have not exceeded
any caps as set out in the agreements as mentioned hereabove
between SZ Eyang and SZ Eycom.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year are audited by Ernst & Young.
The auditor shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
but has agreed to offer themselves for re-appointment. According
to the advice of the Audit Committee, a resolution will be proposed
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weirong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2011
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To the shareholders of EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 120,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

FrEER(EB)BRAQR
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2011
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SETHWS X
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE—ZT—FF+ - A=+—HI-FE Year ended 31 December 2010

Bt 5 —E—FF —ZEZNF
Notes 2010 2009
ARB TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEKEXER CONTINUING OPERATIONS
WA REVENUE 5 396,298 300,289
i & A AR Cost of sales (308,350) (227,046)
EH Gross profit 87,948 73,243
H A YA R U 5 Other income and gains 5 7,405 15,396
HE kD HKAR Selling and distribution costs (10,341) (9,627)
THER Administrative expenses (18,241) (19,741)
H th 7 32 Other expenses (7,601) (8,172)
A B Finance costs 6 (7101) (1,743)
It 9% & A 3 K A Research and development costs 7 (9,363) (6,168)
FEREXEBH PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM
R B AT F E CONTINUING OPERATIONS 7 42,706 43,188
PIT 15 B B X Income tax expense 10 (8,751) (3,075)
FEEEXBH PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
FERE CONTINUING OPERATIONS 33,955 40,113
IS ER DISCONTINUED OPERATION
— AR FEEEER Loss for the year from a discontinued
FEEE operation 12 - (20,410)
F & F 8 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 33,955 19,703
Hfth 2 W = OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BERINEER Exchange difference on translation of
PE X =% foreign operations 1,766 34
FEZHKZEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FORTHEYEAR 35,721 19,737
AT AT REMERE : Profit for the year attributable to:
NEEA A Owners of the parent 11 33,955 19,703
UTATEGEEZE Total comprehensive income
Was4a%m attributable to:
NEEB A Owners of the parent 11 35,721 19,737
FRREERRE EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
FREAEBGESRER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 14
AR #E Basic and diluted
- FE R H — For profit for the year 8.44licents 4.9{licents
_ B EERE - For profit from continuing operations 8.4{licents 9.9{licents

FRARIKRZBEF BRI B RERMEIBRE -

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

(R EARAT
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A BRI &
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZT—ZF+ - F=+—8 31 December 2010
2010F 20094F
B 7 12A31H 12H31H
31 December | 31 December
Notes 2010 2009
AR T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
YE BB MERE Property, plant and equipment 15 263,854 245,247
"EME Investment properties 16 29,671 16,383
T EFE RIE Prepaid land lease payments 17 21,317 21,805
HEmEREE Other intangible assets 18 1,369 1,541
EIEFITEE E Deferred tax assets 20 2,342 1,930
IR EERE Total non-current assets 318,553 286,906
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
P Inventories 21 104,421 113,849
& Uy B 5 8 2 % FE W = 4% Trade and bills receivables 22 153,099 126,346
BRI - éfziz i & Prepayments, deposits and
H At JE Y FR IR other receivables 23 12,791 8,492
FE U B 3 75 B 2R Due from related parties 36(3) 6,910 2,983
D ERER Pledged deposits 24 18,120 25,840
HENIRESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 48,481 35,823
MEE EHEE Total current assets 343,822 313,333
nEAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B E S EREFLENZEE Trade and bills payables 25 57,582 82,138
EEY A J?EE Z AN Deferred income, accruals and
H th & 5 FRIB other payables 26 33,203 26,610
fE ﬁ i 18 Tax payable 14,948 9,687
FFRIRITERK Interest-bearing bank loans 28 110,666 63,851
FE - A% B Dividends payable 171 171
mBAGAE Total current liabilities 216,570 182,457
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 127,252 130,876
EEHAERRBERS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 445,805 417,782
EREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
IEE U A Deferred income 27 3,468 4,274
EERIER & Deferred tax liabilities 20 5,067 3,413
ERBBEERE Total non-current liabilities 8,535 7,687
BEFE Net assets 437,270 410,095
= EQUITY
BAREEAEEELZ  Equity attributable to owners of the parent
BT Issued capital 29 3,824 3,824
B Reserves 32(a) 423,207 396,998
it R 2 PR B Proposed final dividend 13 10,239 9,273
MERE Total equity 437,270 410,095
BRAZ & B
Chen Weirong Liao Jie
EZE EZE
Director Director
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010 41



REREZEH X
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE2-_ZT—Z&+ - A=+—HI%E Year ended 31 December 2010

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAIRAARLER
k& BRE EZR® )
BRf  REE i i AERE
kA& Share  EHEH Share  Exchange  ®%#EF Proposed  HEEH
Issued  premium Contributed option fluctuation  Retained final Total

capital  account  surplus reserve reserve profits  dividend equity
ARETR ARBTT ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR AR®TT ARETR
RMB'0OO ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'000

(fi3%20) (F3E30)
(note 29) (note 30)

R2009E1A1H At1 January 2009 3,824 104,657 200,713 4719 (1,596) 76,286 - 388,663
ERZENRER Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 34 19,703 - 19737
HE-RKEBAR Disposal of a subsidiary - - (1,774) - - 1,774 - -
BaEERRERHE Equity-setfled share option

(Fr3E30) arrangements (note 30) - - - 169 - - _ 169
ERLGIT Share options forfeited - - - (1,677) - 1677 - -
BR2009% & K MR 5 (H1313) Proposed final 2009 dividend (note 13) - - - - - (9,273) 9273 -
R2009F12A318 & At 31 December 2009 and

201051818 1 January 2010 3824 104,657 198,939 4797 (1562)*  90,167" 9273 410,095
ERZENRER Total comprehensive income for the year - - = - 1766 33,955 - 35,721
BREERRETH Equity-settled share option

(B3£30) arrangements (note 30) - 2 - 721 , . . 77
B RE Share options forfeited = - - (480) - 480 - -
BIR000EE KAk & Final 2009 dividend declared - - - - - - (9,273) (9.273)
BR010E E KBRS (K3£13) Proposed final 2010 dividend (note 13) - - - - - (10239 10239 -
R2010£12A318 At 31 December 2010 3,824 104,657 198,939 5,044* 204 114,363 10,239 437270

ZERERBLEGEUBRARPZGEEHBAR These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
¥ 423,007,0007T(20094F : A #396,998,0007T) ° RMB423,207,000 (2009: RMB396,998,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

FHEREEAERAT
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GERETMERXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE—ZT—FF+ - A=+—HI-FE Year ended 31 December 2010

By =E —E2-ZF —ETNEF
Notes 2010 2009
ARETR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RETEELEZ CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

BeRE ACTIVITIES
MR A RLE,(E1E) Profit/(loss) before tax

REBELEED From continuing operations 42,706 43,188

WE AR HEEETK From a discontinued operation 12 - (20,410)
KRR Adjustments for:

A& A Finance costs 6/12 7101 2,174

RITH B IA Bank interest income 5/12 (279) (816)

PEME  BEREE Loss on disposal of items of property,

HBZEE plant and equipment - 38
HE—HHRBAR W  Gainon disposal of a subsidiary 5/31 - (9,707)
e Depreciation 15/16 26,473 25,264
THEEENFKIEA Amortisation of prepaid land

B lease payments 17 488 488
B EESH Amortisation of intangible assets 18 172 172
U E 5 B8R FURE Impairment of trade receivables 22 134 5,320
T ERE Provisions against slow-moving inventories 21 2,454 6,858
G EBRERY Equity-settled share option expense 30 727 1,695

79,976 54,264
BEZRL /(M) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 6,974 (49,812)
U E 5 B 3% K B U Increase in trade and

ZHEM bills receivables (26,654) (81,432)
TafFE  He REM Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

FEUOR A/ (38 m) deposits and other receivables (3,018) 8,891
JEE W 3 77 SRIE 42 AN Increase in amounts due from related parties (3,873) (2,983)
B E SRR ER Increase/(decrease) in trade and

FREM/CRD) bills payables (24,789) 39,467
B A - FERFFE R Increase in deferred income, accruals and

H fth JFE - SR IEE AN other payables 4,771 1,028
BEEm/ CRd) Increase/(decrease) in provisions = 810
JE < B & 77 5K 0R Increase/(decrease) in amounts due

o,/ CR ) to related parties - (11,308)
IREW AR D Decrease in deferred income (806) (806)
muELE /(FA)7I4  Cash generated from/(used in) operations 32,527 (41,881)
B2 IF 2 Interest received 279 816
JE A B B IR PRC tax paid (2,249) (4,345)
rEESELE/(FA) Net cash flows from/(used in)

ZHenEFHE operating activities 30,557 (45,410)
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010 43



GERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE—ZT—FF+ - A=+—HI-FE Year ended 31 December 2010

BT —E-ZF ZEThF
Notes 2010 2009
AR®BT R AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mEEHEL/(FTA) Net cash flows from/(used in)

ZIREREFH operating activities 30,557 (45,410)
REZTEBELEZ CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

RERE ACTIVITIES
BEDE BER Purchases of items of property,

HEEE plant and equipment (56,834) (32,319)
Hit®EERL A Additions to other intangible assets - (1,713)
HE—HRBAR Disposal of a subsidiary 31 - (37,349)
REFHMACES Net cash flows used in investing

mE R activities (56,834) (71,381)
BMETBHELEZ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

RERE ACTIVITIES
HERITER New bank loans 186,443 101,789
BESBRRITER Repayment of interest-bearing bank loans (139,628) (79,931)
ERAME Interest paid (8,092) (3,234)
ERE Dividends paid (9,273) -
[REEEE SO Decrease in pledged bank deposits - 26,591
EEARRAESA Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits

FRiE3ME Az EIE A with original maturity of over three months

RATF ZOR when acquired - 1,000
MEEHELECRS Net cash flows from financing

mEFE activities 29,450 46,215
ReRBSEEYZ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH

B/ (L) R AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,173 (70,576)
FHZHEERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 61,162 131,705
SVEFERFE v & - R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 1,766 33
FEZAERES CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ZEW AT END OF YEAR 66,101 61,162
ReRESEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

RO CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re MRITES Cash and bank balances 24 48,481 35,823
EEABERAREETRE  Pledged bank deposits with original maturity

ARz EEARITHER of less than three months when acquired 24 17,620 25,339
N &4 mEXRYIEYZ  Cashand cash equivalents as stated

BekReEEYD in the consolidated statement of cash flows 66,101 61,162

FHEREEAERAT
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B % R &
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HE—ZT—FF+ - A=+—HI-FE Year ended 31 December 2010

B 5% —E-ZF —ETNF
Notes 2010 2009
AR® T AREFT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - WBE NMEE Property, plant and equipment 15 17 23
REB AR ZI&E Investments in subsidiaries 19 365,000 365,000
ERBEELE Total non-current assets 365,017 365,023
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
B ZE S REM  Prepayments, deposits and
JE U R IE other receivables 23 72 75
JEUR B /B A R F8 Due from subsidiaries 19 70,005 74,023
He MIRITH Cash and bank balances 24 383 106
MEVEEBE Total current assets 70,460 74.204
REAEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
Hih e R R EEFEIE  Other payables and accruals 26 1,026 755
JERT B A R 708 Due to subsidiaries 19 19,793 10,222
mBAGEEE Total current liabilities 20,819 10,977
RENEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 49,641 63,227
EEFE Net assets 414,658 428,250
= EQUITY
21T IR Issued capital 29 3,824 3,824
B Reserves 32(b) 400,595 415,153
R R HB AR B Proposed final dividends 13 10,239 9,273
MR Total equity 414,658 428,250
PR {2 8¢ B
Chen Weirong Liao Jie
EZE o
Director Director

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N_ZE—ZTF+=- =+—H 31 December 2010
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007 as
an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The Company’s
registered office is located at the offices of Codon Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands, and the head office and principal place of business
of the Company are located at EYANG Building, No.3 Qimin
Stree, No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area, Hi-Tech Industrial
Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 19 to these financial statements.

The Company is a subsidiary of EY OCEAN Management
Limited (“EY OCEAN"), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. EY OCEAN is considered by the
directors as the Company’s ultimate holding company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), and the International
Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention and financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).

FrEER(EB)BRAQR
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RZZE—TF+-HA=+—H 31 December 2010
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EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2010. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation
in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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T—ZF+ - A=+—H 31 December 2010
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

IFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 1 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Amendments Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters
IFRS 2 Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based
Amendments Payment - Group Cash-settled

Share-based Payment Transactions

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements

IAS 39 Amendment to IAS 39 Financial
Amendment Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged ltems
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners
IFRS 5 Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current
Amendments Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
included in Operations — Plan to sell the controlling
Improvements interest in a subsidiary
to IFRSs issued
in May 2008
Improvements to  Amendments to a number of IFRS issued
IFRSs 2009 in April 2009

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of IFRS 3 (Revised), IAS 27 (Revised) and amendments
to IAS 7, IAS 17 and IAS 36 included in Improvements to
IFRSs 2009 and, the adoption of the new and revised IFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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RZZE—TF+=H=+—H 31 December 2010
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
IFRSs are as follows:

(a)

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and IAS
27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

IFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes
in the accounting for business combinations that
affect the initial measurement of non-controlling
interests, the accounting for transaction costs, the
initial recognition and subsequent measurement
of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes
will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the
reported results in the period that an acquisition
occurs, and future reported results.

IAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary without loss of
control is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Therefore, such a change will have no impact
on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary
as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
Consequential amendments were made to various
standards, including, but not limited to IAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, |IAS 12 Income Taxes, |IAS
21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates, |IAS 28 Investments in Associates and IAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards
are applied prospectively and affect the accounting
of acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with
non-controlling interests after 1 January 2010.
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Improvements to IFRSs 2009 issued in April 2009
sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs.
There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments results in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of
the key amendments most applicable to the Group
are as follows:

o IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that
only expenditures that result in a recognised
asset in the statement of financial position
can be classified as a cash flow from
investing activities.

o IAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific guidance
on classifying land as a lease. As a result,
leases of land should be classified as either
operating or finance leases in accordance with
the general guidance in IAS 17.

° IAS 36 Impairment of Assets: Clarifies that the
largest unit permitted for allocating goodwill
acquired in a business combination is the
operating segment as defined in IFRS 8
Operating Segments before aggregation for
financial reporting purposes.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Amendment Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters *
IFRS 1 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Amendments Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters *
IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets *
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments °
IAS 12 Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes —
Amendments Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets °
IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures ®
IAS 32 Amendment to IAS 32 Financial
Amendment Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues '
IFRIC 14 Amendments to IFRIC 14 Prepayments
Amendments of a Minimum Funding Requirement ®
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments *

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued Improvements
to IFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of
IFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. The amendments to IFRS 3 and
IAS 27 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2010, whereas the amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 34 and IFRIC 13 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard or
interpretation.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

2
3
.
5
6
Further information about those changes that are expected
to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition principles
of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of the Additions
were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option (“FVQO”). For these FVO liabilities,
the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is
attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented
in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder
of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have
been designated under the FVO are scoped out of these
Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39
on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2013.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of
related parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of
related party disclosure to government-related entities for
transactions with the same government or entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the same government. The Group expects to adopt IAS 24
(Revised) from 1 January 2011.

While the adoption of the revised standard will result in
changes in the accounting policy, the revised standard is
unlikely to have any impact on the related party disclosures
as the Group currently does not have any significant
transactions with government-related entities.

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2011. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. While
the adoption of some of the amendments may result in
changes in accounting policies, none of these amendments
are expected to have a significant financial impact on the
Group. Those amendments that are expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s policies are as follows:

(a) IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that the
amendments to IFRS 7, IAS 32 and |IAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration
do not apply to contingent consideration that arose
from business combinations whose acquisition
dates precede the application of IFRS 3 (as revised
in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the measurement
choice of non-controlling interests at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets to components of non-controlling interests
that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation. Other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by another IFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
that an analysis of other comprehensive income for
each component of equity can be presented either in
the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to
the financial statements.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Clarifies that the consequential
amendments from IAS 27 (as revised in 2008)
made to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS 31 shall be applied
prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 or earlier if IAS 27 is applied earlier.

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes: Clarifies
that when the fair value of award credits is measured
based on the value of the awards for which they
could be redeemed, the amounts of discounts or
incentives otherwise granted to customers not
participating in the award credit scheme are to be
taken into account.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of comprehensive income to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired assets.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has an
interest in the Group that gives it significant influence
over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the
Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
estimated useful lives and residual values used for this
purpose are as follows:

et AEH R {E

Estimated Residual

useful lives values

B Buildings 40%Fyears 10%
B B i 22 Plant and machinery 104 years 10%
WNE R HAMRE Office and other equipment 5% years 10%
R Motor vehicles 5%Fyears 10%
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year date.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
at cost, including transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its carrying amount at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, due from related
parties.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement
of comprehensive income. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in
other operating expenses.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and interest-
bearing loans.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate portion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

65



B 7% 3R MY R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N—E—FF+ - H=+—H 31 December 2010

7 25
AN —=

24

66

FESTHEBES

Fr 8 ®i(4#)

BRFAAR FTHRBZEREZER - AR
APARBERLRADARBEER &
B &6 AJ 8 3R B R A8 AT A A 4K 40
ZEATMREREEZR AR RS A

MEEERARBBRBER  AELER
BEE—RTUARER A TERERI

. HWEBRA THREREERZ
EEMBREESHIFBEBLA G
IRGFNREREERREBE
£ RRETRZRH S NER
ERBMBABERIELE &

. SLELKBAR Z#m A TH
BMERMEZREMS AEEERK
ERAARERRERE  mEBRK
B R]AE 3R PR B AR AT A DA K
HRFEREEERR - HeERE
ERREE -

EEHREEZRAESESEARSH
RF AR - BETEA A B HERBA
HERAENE ML BEELEREE
E AR EEHAEEREE ° KT
RZBETERAEEESERS HRT N
B - BRI RE ARV ER
NEHN2HRATO G KE 2 BEHEE
EAEHARTHRIAZEEHRREE -

ERBAAERABALER AR S
REEFES Y ERREEAEE ¥
NS ARERREMERLER LEE
AR B (RBE) REE .

WEFEERLEARGINTZERN - A
BERR-RRERLE -—HBEZRE
MBEERRBRBAREARELENIA
HiH - M ERELEHRAEEREERIA
BifE -

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

FrEEREB)BRAQR
R -TEFER



B 7% 3R MY R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R-ZT—ZF+ = F=+—8 31 December 2010
2.4 ST BEMESR)
BT %8 B
M BE & I B T Ae W B BT 78 B) S 18 1l
BRI B HB R A FER

R RIRMAXALMEE §ER
BUARGAERABIARERNEBEKK
ZﬂHFEJEEWM%H&)\ °

HEEREEMRE R FESLAE
EWARRE YREMEERRATRE
BEWEiﬁ%Z iR UNBBHEEZFE
RIEEBREA KA BDINEERT
ﬁméﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬂﬁlﬁi\iﬁw ik e

Wy A 78 32

m%%@EET%Qﬁ AKEE - Tl
B HUIR IR T O A i E - U

A@%M%%:

(a) HEEM EEmBEARZIEAR
aROHECEBTE  EAKH
BRESRCEEMEAE—MRA
B2 B ENDR A B A 12 I

(b) TEEWA - EELHREREE LG
EEGE R

(c) FEBWA - REBRFIRARFTEE
HEERMXASNEMIAR
A AERMAEEBMAESAKRE
MENEEZSREERT FE
2R

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of comprehensive income over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of comprehensive income by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 30 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of comprehensive income
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are
treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are covered by government-regulated
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes under
which the employees are entitled to a monthly pension. The
Group contributes a percentage of the employees’ salaries
to these retirement benefit schemes on a monthly basis.
Under these schemes, the Group has no legal obligation
for retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these schemes are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company'’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive
income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive
income are translated to RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgment. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is
made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from
the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period based on
changes in circumstances.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such difference will have an impact on the
carrying amounts of inventories and the write-down charge/
write-back amount in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties

The Group estimates the provisions for impairment of trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts due from
related parties by assessing their recoverability based
on credit history and prevailing market conditions. This
requires the use of estimates and judgments. Provisions
are applied to trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties and thus the impairment
loss in the period in which such estimate is changed. The
Group reassesses the provisions at the end of the reporting
period.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on the nature of their products and
services.

On 4 September 2009, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with a related party of the Company to transfer
the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Eycom Technology
Co., Ltd. ("SZ Eycom”) (I {E @ Bt A R 22 7)) to the
related party at a consideration of RMB3,445,000. The
disposal was completed on 14 October 2009. Further
details of this disposal are included in notes 12 and 31 to
the financial statements. Subsequent to the disposal, the
multi-layer ceramic chips (“MLCC”) segment became the
only major continuing reportable operating segment of
the Group, which engages in the manufacture and sale of
MLCC and the trading of MLCC. Accordingly, no further
operating segment information is provided.

Geographical information for the continuing operation
businesses

—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
AR T ARBETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

INER B A Revenue from external customers:
AR OK BE Mainland China 219,247 156,504
5 KR Hong Kong and Macau 150,730 120,078
% B & BOM America and Europe 13,888 7,031
TEH Turkey 7,155 6,041
SN Japan 3,419 1,668
=0 Taiwan 1,142 3,078
fE India 717 5,889
396,298 300,289
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gain from

BT T continuing operations is as follows:
B 5 —E-=F —EENF
Notes 2010 2009
ARB TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN Revenue
MLCCiH & Sale of MLCC 396,298 300,289
H i A Other income
RITF B WA Bank interest income 7 279 364
e A Rental income 7 4,947 3,444
BT # Bh Government grant 270 _
IR JE Ui A 3 Amortisation of deferred income 27 806 806
$HE R AR Sale of materials 993 869
HAtb Others 110 206
7,405 5,689
W &= Gain
& — R B A T 2 Yz Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 31 - 9,707
7,405 15,396
b & B A FINANCE COSTS
FECEEBIMEXESFOT : An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is
as follows:
—E-FF ZEThEF
2010 2009
AR®B T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITERF A Interest on bank loans 4,401 1,743
Hhgh &K A - Other finance costs:
RITEERX Expense for bank facilities 2,700 -
7101 1,743
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
75

Annual Report 2010



B 7% 3R MY R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=z =

i

AN —=

7

76

B Bt A A

AEBERFBELEEB 2BRBEAABEEHN

T4+ - H=+—H 31 December 2010

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is

B (GEA) - arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Bt 5 —E-FF —ZETNF
Notes 2010 2009
AR® TR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DEFERAN Cost of inventories sold 308,350 277,046
e Depreciation 25,873 24,151
FHE £ b 3B 5 FUE 8 Amortisation of land lease prepayments 488 488
H b & = Amortisation of other intangible assets 172 172
Tt 55 B A B A A Research and development costs:
RKEFEHRX Current year expenditure 9,363 6,168
BFEREHYRFEMAE  Minimum lease payments under
IA operating leases in respect
of buildings 268 236
1% SR B Auditors’ remuneration 980 1,100
EERANAX (B Employee benefit expense (including
E=P e (K:E8)) directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
TENE® Wages and salaries 42,532 35,308
iR AE ) 4 3 Retirement benefit contributions 1,447 1,230
REEEERERS Equity-settled share option expense 727 1,695
PEN =2 (CF%) Foreign exchange differences, net 4,269 466
BIF SR e N #IE Write-down of inventories to
A net realisable value* 2,454 688
FEWE ZRFOBE” Impairment of trade receivables* 134 5,320
% T 4 Bh Government grants** (270) -
‘"EYFEHESBAR Rental income on investment
BEELERX properties less direct operating
A R #368,0007T expense of RMB368,000
(20094 : AR (2009: RMB349,000)
349,0007T) 5 (4,947) (3,444)
RIT A B YA Bank interest income 5 (279) (364)
& —FEK B A A Z Wz Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 31 - (9,707)

BEEARETRRFERERE S ER
AECREERS2ERSREbE
BT -

o BT B =R T BB A S E O
EHEBBLE-FHRMMROERN —IRE
) - LA ¥ 20094 B 108 M T A P H) — TR 42
B -

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value and impairment
of trade receivables are included in “Other expenses” on the face of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The government grants represent the subsidies received from the
Shenzhen Financial Bureau as a reward of the excess amount of
export sales of a high-tech enterprise in the current year over that in
the previous year and the reward as the top ten tax payer in the year
2009.
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8. BEEME 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

EEMeFBEOT Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:
T =E-%%| -—TIaf
2010 2009
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 244 253

EMe - Other emoluments:

4 KOEBL Salaries and allowances 884 732
RIRAE R Retirement benefit contributions 45 42
i #E 4k BRI B S Equity-settled share option expense 237 333
1,166 1,107
1,410 1,360

FR - ETESFARS /A RE RS ME
REARBZEREFERTERE A
BE—PHFBCEHRNMBHRAMEI0 -
ZEBEREZAFEEERE THER
2HRERAER)CRELBSETE
M AR FERBRRZEFCBEHE
EXEEMEZHREERA -

FR AEETEINHFHTAQAME
MEFESMAAKTE S » HIER
BEREE FAYESEFRERL2ARE
e EMHMz 2B -

(@) BIFHITES
FARBILIFNATEE N2

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options which has been recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period
was determined as at the date of grant, and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive

W directors during the year were as follows:
CCE-%E| -—TEAS
2010 2009
AR®TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R k& Mr. Liu Huanbin 70 74
EELE Mr. Pan Wei 70 74
KERLE Mr. Peleus Chu 104 105
244 253

FRATERABILIEATES SN
H {th B £ (20094 : ) o

There were no other emoluments payable to
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2009: Nil).

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010 77



BY 7% AR M &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N-E—ZF+=-H=+—H 31 December 2010

8. EEME# 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) HITRIEHITEES (b)  Executive and non-executive directors
BARER RELE
HeRER ¥ BREBEX
Salaries  Retirement Equity-settled BHe
we and benefit share option Total
Fees allowances contributions expense remuneration
ARETR ARBTn AR¥Tn AR¥Trn AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HZ2010E12831H 1t Year ended
FE 31 December 2010
niTE®: Executive directors:
BREXTAE Mr. Chen Weirong - 404 15 56 475
B AE Mr. Liao Jie - 313 15 51 379
TR Mr. Xu Chuncheng* - 167 15 79 261
- 884 45 186 1,115
ERHTES: Non-executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Cheng Wusheng = = - - -
REMELE Mr. Zhang Zhilin = = - - -
BR& L& Mr. Chen Hao = = - - -
BigkL Ms. Shuang Mei** - = - 51 51
- - - 51 51
FhEER(EE)GR A A

8
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8. EEMEH) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) BITRIBITESSD (b) Executive and non-executive directors
(continued)

BIREN  BRER

Fe ozl 3 BRERX
Salaries  Retirement Equity-settled LHe
ik and benefit  share option Total
Fees  allowances contributions expense remuneration

ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARETRT
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

H 220095128318 1t Year ended

FE 31 December 2009
WOTES Executive directors:
RERLE Mr. Chen Weirong - 284 14 17 415
BHREE Mr. Liao Jie - 204 14 108 326
Rl Ms. Shuang Mei** - 193 1 85 289
- 681 39 310 1,030
FBTES: Non-executive directors:
BRERE Mr. Cheng Wusheng = = = = -
REMEE Mr. Zhang Zhilin = = - - -
BE & & Mr. Chen Hao = - - - _
FERESE Mr. Li Hegjiu = - - _ _
gzt Ms. Shuang Mei** - 51 3 23 77
- 51 8 23 77
RERELECERELARRNITE * Mr. Xu Chuncheng was appointed as an executive director of the
£ B2010F5 1B BER ° Company with effect from 1 May 2010.
g AL EAARARITESEAET = Ms. Shuang Mei was re-designated from an executive director of
RADFIFHITES - B2009410 the Company to a non-executive director of the Company with effect
A15BBAERK ° from 15 October 2009.
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5EmREFEEE

FR b5EHE&EEFIEES B E3IRR09
F2R)EFE EFMEBIHN LXMW
T8 F N - EER2HA (20094 1 3%) S
= R EREZEMFBHT

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2009: two) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining two (2009: three) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

—E-ZF —EENF

2010 2009

AR¥ T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e MoEEL Salaries and allowances 812 1,099
B R R I 3R Retirement benefit contributions 16 28
MRt E R Equity-settled share option expense 43 216
871 1,343

SHBUATHEZIEESE SZaFdsE
EHEWMT :

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

—E-%F —TTNhF
2010 2009
Tz AR #1,000,0007c  Nil to RMB1,000,000 2 3

FRABFEEERFRERERLE
ERHMERERE BHEE-TFRB
EENMBRRHE0 - ZEBRELZ
AFEEHERETHEAREZEESERA
BRICREL BHEE » Mt ARNFE
MBEBRRZEBEBRELFESFR
BHcEEMEZREERA -

During the year, share options were granted to one non-
director, highest paid employee in respect of his service
to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 30 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

FHEREEERAT
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i e

10. FrBH 10.
AEBERAEEKE QAR EMENE
BZRIEEREEZNBEERESAH

NEEHR -

HRAEBFARETEL R EEL SR
BRERBAE - BUL A K B &L E B
MESTIELBHE -

ARARBRPECHERRFEITF
ERIEERARARRERINFEDER
2008 F 12 A16HERSHHELER
7 0 Bt 7 2008 FF 2= 20104 H [ 78 81 4N
Z2EREMBHHEEH15% -

BR £ SCPTAUR YT 15 7 B 15% @ BB X
S RREZ B R BN FAEL25%F
ERERYNEEREN

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned
in Hong Kong during the year.

Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“SZ
Eyang”) (X Il F 5§ & % & A R 2 7)), a subsidiary
of the Company in the PRC, obtained its high technology
enterprise accreditation on 16 December 2008 and hence
was subject to a national income tax rate of 15% from 2008
to 2010.

Except for SZ Eyang mentioned above that was entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15%, the subsidiaries of the
Company were required to pay corporate income tax
(“CIT”) at the standard rate of 25% during the year.

—E-ZF —EThF
2010 2009
AR T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
rEH : Group:
BN B —rp Current — PRC
FERBESH Charge for the year 7,510 1,508
ik s Deferred 1,241 1,567
F AT B Total tax charge for the year 8,751 3,075
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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Fri58E) 10. INCOME TAX (continued)
BARNRMENBARMERR ZEFE A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
MEHE R AHEEMER L E before tax at the statutory rates for the countries in which
RERMERAE R ERYYEE  UR the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
EABEENVEENER) BERRE 28 expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the
BRUNK - applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective
tax rates, are as follows:
7N 5 E-20104F Group — 2010
K BE HEHE @t
Mainland China Cayman Islands Total
ARBT T BAt ARETR BAlt ARETR BAL
RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %
SELEER L Profit before tax from
BR B0 A1 7 B continuing operations 45,587 (2,881) 42,706
BETER KR E 2 I8 Tax at the statutory tax rate 11,397 25 - - 11,397 27
NTEEZHIEAFE  Taxeffectof:
BEMRHIERZ Lower tax rates for specific
REHE districts or countries (478) () - - (478) (2
RBEREE Tax incentives (2,627) (6) - - (2,627) (6)
BARTRA Income not subject to tax (121) - - - (121) -
A MBHAEZ Expenses not deductible
for tax 1,684 4 - - 1,684 4
AERZHEEE Tax losses not recognised 230 1 - - 230 1
BEINNFHE0%H%E K Additional deduction of 50%
A of the research and
development expense (3,045) (7) - - (3,045) (8)
HAGE 28 Effect of withholding tax
NN R on the distributable profits
FlEzBHH 2 of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries 1,654 4 - - 1,654 4
Hit Others 57 - - - 57 -
RASEERHX Tax charge at the Group’s
HEMERS effective tax rate 8,751 19 = = 8,751 20

FrEEREB)BRAQR
T -TFFH
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10. FiBH#E 10. INCOME TAX (continued)
AEE-2009F Group - 2009
SIEN HERS @it
Mainland China Cayman Islands Total
ARBTT Bt ARBTT Bt ARBTT BA
RMB’ 000 %  RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %
BERE Ry Profit before tax from
W A continuing operations ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ
L ER R E v Fi1g Tax atthe statutory tax rate 11,663 25 - - 11,663 27

PTF&EYHEy e . Taxeffect of:
EEHEGER Y Lower tax rates for specific

HER X districts or countries (1,198) (3) - - (1,198) (3)
BEyEEE Tax incentives (3,415) ) - - (3,415) (8)
5t B HA R B B Adjustments in respect of

MEZ AR current tax of previous

periods (3,696) (8) - - (3,696) 9)
BAEZF A Income not subject to tax (1,577) 3) - - (1,677) (4)
A HF RS Expenses not deductible

for tax 416 1 - = 416 1
FRZEHEY Tax losses utilised from

HIEEE previous periods (270) - = - (270) _
REZHEAEE Tax losses not recognised 212 - - - 212 -
FEONFHE50% % % Additional deduction of 50%

B3 B AR of the research and

development expense (1,785) (4) - - (1,785) (4)
HAEF S Effect of withholding tax on
NGB the distributable profits
Mm@z ENREYE  oftheGroups
PRC subsidiaries 2,458 5 - - 2,458 6
Hith Others 267 1 - - 267 1

RAEBE B Tax charge at the Group’s

HEYHERY effective tax rate 3,075 7 = = 3,075 7
1. BATEBAAEERE 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
PARENT

HE2010F12A318LEFEZEA The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
AHEEABGERETEEEBEEAR for the year ended 31 December 2010 includes a loss of
¥ 2,881,000 TL(2009 F © B E AR RMB2,881,000 (2009: loss of RMB4,562,000) which has
4,562,0007T) ' ZESEE R AR &) B 7% 5l been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
F R IE (M1 5E32(b)) ° (note 32(b)).
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12, HRIEREEK 12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
MR2009F9H4H  REBEHARQRFZ On 4 September 2009, the Group entered into a disposal
BE A FEITmEAIKERRAT(E agreement with Shenzhen Weichuang Investment Co., Ltd.
BIREDFILHERE  URKEARY ("Weichuang Investment”) (7 JIl 17 {2 &l 2 & B R 2 7)),
3,445,000 C AEEIREE ZRIERBZ a related party of the Company, to transfer the entire
ZERE - FRINEBRERERBEEY equity interest in SZ Eycom to Weichuang Investment for a
HFE - ENAEEBRES FHRERTE consideration of RMB3,445,000. SZ Eycom engages in the
BE - BREBHFHRTSHRF A manufacture and sale of mobile phones. The Group has
REBEOAEKRIEEBRS FHRER I decided to cease its mobile phone business in view of the
1B EERERIRMN B HIERAMLCCE continuing loss from the mobile phone business and the
BER - BERIEBE R2009F10 A fierce competition in the PRC mobile phone market, and
14H5E/K ° to focus its resources on the development of the growing
MLCC business. The disposal of SZ Eycom was completed
on 14 October 2009.
RIMEBAI2009F EEZH T - The results of SZ Eycom for the year 2009 are presented
below:
—ZEENF
2009
ARETFT
RMB’000
LN Revenue 315,102
& A AR Cost of sales (302,181)
£ 7 Gross profit 12,921
HRITA B HA Bank interest income 452
=N N & Other income and gains 183
$HE Ko KA Selling and distribution costs (18,940)
THER Administrative expenses (3,648)
9% & F 3 AR Research and development costs (4,330)
H h 7 2 Other expenses (6,617)
B & A AR Finance costs (431)
R TR 2 BT AT E 1B Loss before tax from the discontinued operation (20,410)
PG T Income tax -
I e ¥ FREER Loss for the year from the discontinued operation (20,410)
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12. R IEREEKE#E) 12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
AINEBELEZRESREFEWT ¢ The net cash flows incurred by SZ Eycom are as follows:
—ETNF
2009
ARETT
RMB’000
LR B Operating activities (27,613)
"EED Investing activities 346
& & E & Financing activities (18,759)
W& F M Net cash outflow (46,026)
SRER : Loss per share:
HEANEE(RBKIE Basic and diluted, from the discontinued operation
K T ) (5.01lli cents )
MRIMEE B I FRER LB EEEBT The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
ETHIEBE - the discontinued operation is based on:
—ZEENF
2009
ARET T
RMB’000
[SUNEIESER g Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
BAEABGEKIE from the discontinued operation
REXBZER 20,410,000
FEstEZREKRE R Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
ZEFERNBEEITEMAT  the year used in the basic earnings per share calculation
Z DN 15 B 405,500,000
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13.

14.
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R E 13. DIVIDENDS
—E-ZF —TENF
2010 2009
AR® TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R R E — FR%3.0/81l Proposed final - HK3.0 cents per share
(20094 : 2.6781l) (2009: HK2.6 cents) 10,239 9,273

BORFERARBALRNRABRRRNE
ERRBERE UL TAEE -

BARAERERBREFEAELER
ZH
EREABINCHENIEZGRAREBR
BEFEABRELGFENBERFEFALR
F 17 405,500,000 % & i@ A% (2009 F :
405,500,0000% ) 2 IN#E F 9 ST & -

HRERITECERECEEHMET
CEBREARBFNCEEE REEUE
A 4% A = 20104 K& 20094 12 A31H
HEFEE2N2ERERNZFSEFELE
A ESE A o

14.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 405,500,000 (2009:
405,500,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2009 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings per share amounts presented.

FHEREEERAT
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15. ¥X BERR®E

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

& Group
WERR
BHER Hth i e
e Office RE  ERIE
#F  Plantand  and other Motor Construction @t
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
ARETT ARBTR AR¥ETRT AE¥TR AR%Trn ARET:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20106128318 31 December 2010
M2000F12A318 & At 31 December 2009 and
201051718 : at 1 January 2010:
KR Cost 68,851 251,506 14,133 1,479 8,245 344,214
ZHFERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impaiment (6,886)  (81,640) (9,378) (1,063) - (98,967)
ERFE Net carrying amount 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247
R2010F1A1A - At1 January 2010, net of
MGEEFNER accumulated depreciation
E and impairment 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247
NE Additions 1,465 47,01 1,962 286 7644 58,368
B Transfers - 893 - - (893) -
HERESRENE Transfer o investment
(K 5E16) properties (note 16) (13,888) - - - - (13,888)
FREE Provided during the year (1,319) (23,160) (1,280) (114) - (25,873)
R2010F12A318 - At 31 December 2010, net of
Nk 2ATER accumulated depreciation
AE and impairment 48,223 194,610 5,437 588 14,996 263,854
2010124318 : At 31 December 2010:
A Cost 56,428 299,356 14,016 1,765 14,996 386,561
ZEHTERME Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (8,205 (104,746) (8,579) (1,177) - (122707
FHFE Net carrying amount 48,223 194,610 5,437 588 14,996 263,854
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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15. Y%  BERRZXBE® 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
NEEE) Group(continued)
MERR
BER EBR
HE Office RE  ERIR
BF  Plantand  andother Motor Construction e
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

ARBTL ARBTT ARBTL ARBETR ARBTL ARETR
RMB'000__ RMB'000__ RMB'000 _ RMB'000 _ RMB'000 _ RMB'000

2009%12A31R 31 December 2009

Ro008E12A31A K At 31 December 2008 and

2009F 17418 : at 1 January 2009:

KA Cost 74,612 237,678 18,269 1,394 878 332,831

ZAMERRE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (5,266) (60,745) (8,109) (981) - (75,101)

ERFE Net carrying amount 69,346 176,933 10,160 413 878 257,730
20091 A 18 At 1 January 2009, net of

MK 2T ERKMAE  accumulated depreciation

and impairment 69,346 176,933 10,160 413 878 257,730

WE Additions 530 14,157 943 85 7,399 23,114
& Disposals - (7) (32) - - (39)
HE—FNBAR Disposal of a subsidiary

(FitzE31) (note 31) = (263) (3,993) - - (4,256)
g Transfers 32 = = = (32) =
BREREME Transfer to investment

(Kt zE16) properties (note 16) (6,324) - - - - (6,324)
FAKE Provided during the year (1,619) (20,954) (2,323) (82) = (24,978)

2009128318+ At31December 2009, net of
MK 2T ERMAE  accumulated depreciation
and impairment 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247

P2009F12A318 : At 31 December 2009:

B Cost 68,351 251,506 14133 1,479 8,245 344,214
RHMERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (6,886) (81,640) (9,378) (1,083) - (98,967)
REFE Net carrying amount 61,965 169,866 4,755 416 8,245 245,247

FHEBEEERA R
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15. ¥%  BERRE®

AEBZBFTRPBEAEARRHEOR

ﬁ o

AEBEEIRYE - BFE R REAERK
SEZRITERZFBHNME28(a) °

TR R B AR M R B A EE AL R RS
R2010F 12 A1 HEEE FREN A ARE
4,783,000 JT(2009 & : A R # 4,898,000
TIXETEFZFBERER -

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group(continued)

in Mainland China.

28(a).

relevant PRC authorities.

The Group’s buildings are held under medium term leases

Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in note

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of
the Group located in Dongguan with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB4,783,000 as at 31 December 2010
(2009: RMB4,898,000) have not yet been issued by the

NN Company
WEER
Hinh 15
Office and
other
equipment
AR T
RMB’ 000
R20105F12H31H 31 December 2010
R2009F 12 A31H & At 31 December 2009 and
2010F1 A18 : at 1 January 2010:
(BN Cost 35
25inE Accumulated depreciation (12)
BREFER Net carrying amount 23
M20106F1 H18 - At 1 January 2010, net of accumulated depreciation
Nk EAHE
NE Additions -
FREAE Provided during the year (6)
R2010F12A318 - At 31 December 2010, net of accumulated
kR REHITE depreciation 17
7201012 A31H - At 31 December 2010:
(BN Cost 35
Rt E Accumulated depreciation (18)
REFE Net carrying amount 17
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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15. ¥ BERXHE® 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
NN ) Company (continued)

MEER
Hin%
Office and
other
equipment
AREFTT
RMB’ 000

7A2009%12A31H 31 December 2009

20085 12H31H & At 31 December 2008 and at 1 January 2009:

20091 H18 :

B AR Cost 35

REtinE Accumulated depreciation (6)

BREFER Net carrying amount 29
7R2009F1H18 - At 1 January 2009, net of accumulated

ks 2 E depreciation 29

NE Additions _

FRNBE Provided during the year (6)
R2009F 124311 - At 31 December 2009, net of accumulated

R RETITE depreciation 23
7200912 A31H : At 31 December 2009:

BN Cost 35

N Accumulated depreciation (12)

AR5 Net carrying amount 23
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R-ZT—ZTF+=-F=+—H 31 December 2010
16. BEWH 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
B 5 —E-ZF —ZETNF
Note 2010 2009
AR¥ T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1TBZKA Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated
kR & depreciation 16,383 10,345
BV WELEE Transfer from property, plant
= and equipment 15 13,888 6,324
FRNFTERE Depreciation provided during the year (600) (286)
12 A31H At 31 December 29,671 16,383
M12A318 : At 31 December:
DN Cost 30,714 16,826
RitinE Accumulated depreciation (1,043) (443)
AR F 58 Net carrying amount 29,671 16,383
REB Z7EEMERBEHREHEROEE T The Group’s investment properties are held under medium
o 78 HR B K B o term leases and are situated in Mainland China.
M2010F 128318  XEBRIKREMEZ At 31 December 2010, the fair value of the Group’s
NEEX A A REES0,400,0007T @ JiiRIE investment properties was approximately RMB80,400,000,
B B % & &1 4 (B AbAscent Partners which was based on the valuation performed by Ascent
Transaction Services Limitediz I8 B {F Partners Transaction Services Limited, independent
RAFEmH 2 EEEE - professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing
use basis.
17 tHEERNSRE 17.  PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
AR T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R1ATE ZEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 22,293 22,781
R Amortisation provided during the year (488) (488)
W12A31A ZREE Carrying amount at 31 December 21,805 22,293
BIEETERE 1% & Kk Current portion included in prepayments,
H b fE R IE 2 deposits and other receivables
BIVER 2B 5> (488) (488)
JEBDHAE[ 5 Non-current portion 21,317 21,805

AEBZHEHELHREFHBEOFEL
o7 70 R B KB

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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18.

19.
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HBEEEE 18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BEEHT
Computer software
—E-ZF ZEENF
2010 2009
ARBTR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A1A1B Z KR Cost at 1 January, net of
(kR EFHITE) accumulated amortisation 1,541 -
A=Y Additions - 1,713
FAEHEE Amortisation provided during the year (172) (172)
12 A31H At 31 December 1,369 1,541
M®12H318 : At 31 December:
DN Cost 1,713 1,713
RET#H Accumulated amortisation (344) (172)
AR % FR Net carrying amount 1,369 1,541
R E QR 2B 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
QT Company
—E-ZF —EThEF
2010 2009
AR® TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE LMD - LA A{E  Unlisted shares, at cost 365,000 365,000

FEREEMNKEBAGRESEARRA
ZRBEERRDAEBES I AARK
70,005,0007T (20094F : A R #74,023,000
7T) B A R #19,793,000 75(20094F : A R
#10,022,0007T) * JHEEE c 2 B RN E
KEFEE - LSRR ENIE QR FIE
ZEAEREQAFERE -

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s current assets and current liabilities
of RMB70,005,000 (2009: RMB74,023,000) and
RMB19,793,000 (2009: RMB10,222,000), respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts of these amounts due from and due to
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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AH B A B ZREHE) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
& AT Company (continued)
MWEBARZHESRINOT : Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
BETR
ST ER R BERE/
EENARAHS HRRAEE KARERS
Placeanddate  Nominal value of REE A
of incorporation/ issuedand  Percentage of equity
AREB registration and paid-up share/  attributable to the TEXH
Company name operations  registered capital Company Principal activities
BE f&
Direct Indirect
% %
Eyang Management Co., Ltd. RBRIHE 10,000% 7T 100 - RAERR
(“Eyang Management”) 200684108 US$10,000 Investment holding
BVI
10 August 2006
EATHEREBARAR Bk 10,000/ 7T - 100 REZKR
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings (Group) 200687131 HK$10,000 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
13 August 2006
EEFHRBRERAA BB/ HEKE 500,00078 7T - 100 EEMLCC
Hong Kong Eyang Technology 20015107128 HK$500,000 Trading of MLCC
Co., Ltd. Hong Kong/
Mainland China
12 October 2001
R FH e/ REARE ARB2506856507T - 100 RIERHEMLCC
SZ Eyang* 200162R 228 RMB250,685,650 Manufacture and sale
PRC/Mainland China of MLCC
22 February 2001
REmTHEURERARAR B/ REARE AR%20,0000007T - 100 #FHEREEMLCC
((REFH))* 20013 A22H RMB20,000,000 Lease of buildings and
Dongguan Eyang Technology PRC/Mainland China trading of MLCC
Development Co., Ltd. (“DG Eyang”)* 22 March 2001
ZHEFHEFHRERAA E/REARE  ARMS50000007T - 100 #
Anhui Jineyang Electronic Technology 20088 A25H RMB5,000,000
Co., Ltd.” PRC/Mainland China
25 August 2008

v

el

# ENSIGENGES

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

ZERBREFEDEOIEMKZIAERA

#

Companies incorporated as limited liability companies under the

PRC law.

The company has not yet commenced operation.
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i R
RERNZELEHRBEERABRBESHMT ¢

EEBEEE

20.

DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year are as follows:
Deferred tax assets
BEBRBERF
ZHEZEM By 9% BEE
LS 5 EEK% RREBRE
Amortisation HHEFE REMGER AE
of computer BiE FBE  Impairment
software in Provision  Impairment of items of
excess of against of trade property,
tax allowed slow-moving and other plant and Bt
depreciation inventories  receivables equipment Total

ARBTL ARBTIL ARBTL ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2008%F 128318 K At 31 December 2008 and

200941 A1H 1 January 2009 21 532 429 57 1,039
FAREERRE Credited/(charged) to the statement
AR /(Nk) of comprehensive income during
the year (4) 111 799 (15) 891
R20094 128318 & At 31 December 2009 and
20101 A1H 1 January 2010 17 643 1,228 42 1,930
FARZAKRER Credited/(charged) to the statement
INYACLY of comprehensive income during
the year (9) 368 58 - 412
R2010F12H31H At 31 December 2010 8 1,011 1,281 42 2,342

AEER2010F 12 A31 B M IBBE LD A
R #2176,00070(2009%12 A31H AR
#2,264,0007T) ' I IEBIERELE
BRFEREEST  UHEEZESIH
HEB AR BB ZERBFE - AR
ZEEIERD LA EE BB
RElEE BREXZHDBHBROBE -
RS [ m B HA AT A5 B 7T 0 JE R A A
BB RAAEEHEBRE R Z
EEHEBEBERELEHBEE -

The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB2,176,000
as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 20009:
RMB2,264,000) that can be carried forward for five years
from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the utilisation of the
carryforward of tax losses before they expire in five years.

FrEEREB)BRAQR
R -TEFER
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20. EEBIE® 20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EEHEBEBERE Deferred tax liabilities
AN
Withholding
taxes
ARET T
RMB’000
7R2008F12A31H & At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009
2009F1 A 1H 955
FAREZEEFEERT Charged to the statement of comprehensive income
kxR during the year 2458
R2009%F12H318 & At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010
2010F1 A1H 3,413
FARTEKHZRSP Charged to the statement of comprehensive income
Mk during the year 1,654
72010128318 At 31 December 2010 5,067

BEFRCEMEHE  INRREER
RARBEARERIOIINEREDEES
I BB IR R 10% M T R BURFEINFR - 3ZIR
JE 2008 1 A1 H AR » # A 12007
F12A318% 2 &F) o 5 B A B 2 5%
EHNEREENREAAHRFERKE
e AT ARETENR R o AEEEB
TR B5% o B+ AR5 B A B K BE R
2 M B A B 200841 A1 H & K
ZBF DR E RS ASMTEIR o

R2010F 1284318 » 5 HE T A& B
BRAEIMZATFRERAFIL EEKXE
IEFRIE B E R FHERCL09F : T) -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable
to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2010, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2009: Nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries.
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FE 21. INVENTORIES
rEH
Group
—E-ZF —TThEF
2010 2009
AR TR ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 22,921 25,188
£ &m Work in progress 32,716 30,420
BIpK i Finished goods 55,532 62,535
111,169 118,143
T E R B Provision against slow-moving inventories (6,748) (4,294)
104,421 113,849
ERESERIAREKREE 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
rEH
Group
—E-ZF —EThEF
2010 2009
AR TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e E 5 BR 2 N e U = Trade and bills receivables 161,633 134,746
VEREN Impairment (8,534) (8,400)
153,099 126,346

AEBEAMICCEF 2B 57 A AR
BE -HBTMICCEFZEEH—KR2
=5 A - BEFRARS
B R EEBUGRA BBIES - YREAR
ERHHFAASEEERRBERE -
EEENEE R aiRENE - &
WEZERRBRE

BRI EEI ARSI REFT60E 184

HAZIHE -

FE# A%

The Group’s trading terms with its MLCC customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period for MLCC customers
generally are two to five months. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise its credit risk. Overdue

balances are reviewed regularly by management. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

the end of the reporting period.

The bills receivable were all due within 60 to 184 days from

FHERGEBRERA R
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2. EWEBESERIREWKEE® 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
RIWERKR REZHHAEEEI An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
B9BRAZEEDT  UREWREEZ the reporting period, based on the invoice date, and the
SR ¢ amount of bills receivable are as follows:

—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
ARE TR AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
0HMA Within 90 days 91,106 78,575
912 180H 91 to 180 days 21,218 21,679
1812360 H 181 to 360 days 634 1,181
1224 1to 2 years 5,454 106
HBiE3F Over 3 years 3,080 3,080
120,492 104,621
E U =i Bills receivable 41,141 30,125
161,633 134,746

EWE SEREFREBEREZESHNT ¢ The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

—E-ZF —ETNF

2010 2009

AR¥ T AR T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

M1A1R At 1 January 8,400 3,080

BHERREEIE Impairment losses recognised 134 5,320

12 A31H At 31 December 8,534 8,400
AR FREBE ZRFBRERERERNE Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
R (B FE B 5 BR 5O A R 8,534,000 receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
JT(20094F : A E#8,400,0007T) © HBE receivables of RMB8,534,000 (2009: RMB8,400,000) with a
H1E & A R #8,534,00075(20094F : AR carrying amount of RMB8,534,000 (2009: RMB8,400,000).
#:8,400,0007T) ° @R 2 B E W E 5 R The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
DEERESRSEZFE AR WiEH customers that were in financial difficulties and are not
AR E - REBWTER LS EETE expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
T EFE R EMMREERE - any collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010 97
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EREZERAREKREZE®Z 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
WIEERIs HRGE AREZ ERE SR An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
RZEREBEDTWT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
rEH
Group
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
AR T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mARBEAINE BIRE  Neither past due nor impaired 98,451 90,195
@ #1290 B Less than 90 days past due 12,727 4,285
#HI91H =180H 91 to 180 days past due 190 1,635
#HI181H £360H 181 to 360 days past due 590 106
111,958 96,221

fe) 7R 80 B 77 4 1 3R OB {E 2 R U E 5 AR X
HEHELZTAEFAR  RENIHYE
EHITRRCER -

Ea e E L IRBEZ BKE SRR E
BEBUEFAR RERAKEZM
KRS RIF - RIBFAEER AR
ERREGELERYESANE At
FHRHEDESAT2HKDE - Fitt B AR
I ERE R E R R -

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

The trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

FHEREEERAT
—E-TFFH
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BANR  RERHEMERK

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

rE b NN
Group Company
—E-ZH | —_TTNEF | ZB-BF | ZZTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARETR | AR¥TT| AREFTR | ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SEEREN Prepayments 9,739 6,200 - -
e RkHEAM Deposits and
JFE W 5k other receivables 3,438 2,678 72 75
13,177 8,878 72 75
R E Impairment (386) (386) = =
12,791 8,492 72 75

2010 % 20094F -+ E At & W R 18 7
W Es -

FPAREEMEKFOREREERENE
BB At R U R 2 B - fE B 2 ORE 2
Hib W FEN TFHER 2 RARER
MNRER LERTARE - AEEW
ER N F AR A T E R me 0

BIEEEE -

fe) R 780 5 7T 4 1 3RO (B A0 HL A B IR Y
REELEEGTATEENTRLCIERZ
HMEBARR -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

There is no movement in the provision for impairment of
other receivables during the years 2010 and 2009.

Included in the above provision for impairment of other
receivables is a provision for individually impaired other
receivables. The individually impaired other receivables
relate to long outstanding prepayments to suppliers which
are not expected to be recovered. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

The carrying amounts of the other receivables that were

neither past due nor impaired related to other debtors for
whom there was no recent history of default.

99



B 7% 3R MY R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i

AN —=

24,

100

RERREEEYREBEARTER 24

T—FF+ = A=+—H 31 December 2010

BANK DEPOSITS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

AEE Group
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
ARB TR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B MIRITHES Cash and bank balances 48,481 35,823
TEHF R Time deposit 18,120 25,840
66,601 61,663
W ERENERK Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills
EFERAMRZBEERA payable and letters of credit
RITHF K (11,166) (21,129)
BERIFTERZEER Pledged bank deposits for bank
R1TF 5K (K £28(b)) loans (note 28(b)) (6,954) (4,711)
REVBKIIARAZ Cash and cash equivalents in the
HEeRBEESEEY consolidated statement of financial position 48,481 35,823
oo ERRBE A Add: Bank deposits with original maturity of
LRR3E A 2 less than three months
|ITERK - when acquired:
EREMNZE RE R Pledged for bills payable and letters
of credit 10,666 20,628
ERIRITE K Pledged for bank loans 6,954 4,711
SZERERERAZ Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
HNENBEESEEY statement of cash flows 66,101 61,162
b NN Company
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
ARB TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Re RIRITER Cash and bank balances 383 106

RBERR AEFEZHSRBESSE
IAARES|E - B AR32,897,0007C
(20094F : AR #26,649,0007T) ° AR
T EREE AW BERBEKEZ
SNEE BIEA - HE R INEE BIHE
Bl AEBEESBEREHETINEE
BZBITRBARE o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB32,897,000 (2009: RMB26,649,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

FHEREEERAT
—E-TFFH
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BeRBSEBMURCEARTER
(#)
BAFRRES B BATRAERT
B = PR A 8. o 52 B BT AR EAIR B
TOME A S1ERE 3 R 1 558 E 5
BRFERMAL - RITEBREER
$B 1717 317 HOR T B3 38 4017 A 0 88
ZIEBROETR -BERBLEEURE
RT3 2 R A S A T EAE -

ENEZERRAREARE
RBEHRR REZERREEZEN
BERRAZEEIT  URENREZ
TR

24.

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between three months and one year,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate to their
fair values.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, and the
amount of bills payable are as follows:

AEE

Group
—E-ZF ZEENF
2010 2009
AR® TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
90H K Within 90 days 55,824 47,390
91£180H 91 to 180 days 618 678
1812 360H 181 to 360 days 826 10
1824 1to 2 years 261 60
2FE3F 2to 3 years 53 -
57,582 48,138
FERT & Bills payable - 34,000
57,582 82,138

BB SERASE  —RK0E1208
B o

20095 12H31H - AEE 2 ENER
BEBEARAEERERE TWE  BEREKHE
EERR 2RITEEEIT - 5B
28(a) °

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of 30 to 120 days.

The Group’s bills payable as at 31 December 2009 were
issued under banking facilities secured by certain property,
plant and equipment of the Group, details of which are set
out in note 28(a).
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ZH&E+=- A=+—H 31 December 2010

ELEWA - EtERAREMENR 26. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES
rEH b NN
Group Company
—E-ZH | —_TTNEF | ZB-BF | ZZTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARETR | ARETT| AR TR | ARBTXT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R RE WA Deferred income 806 806 - -
Bt &R Accruals 1,098 780 980 588
H Other payables 31,299 25,024 46 167
33,203 26,610 1,026 755
EMENRATHBERE —BPR1FERNE The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will
fif o generally mature within one year.
IE E WA 27. DEFERRED INCOME
BB Government grants
rEE
Group
AREFTT
RMB’000
7R2009F12A318 & Carrying amount at 31 December 2009 and
2010F1A1H Z8REE 1 January 2010 5,080
B8 AU (Bt 3E5) Amortised as income (note 5) (806)
7 2009F 12 A31H Carrying amount at 31 December 2009
ZBREE 4,274
BIEAELEWA - ST Current portion included in deferred income,
ERNMEMERNRZ accruals and other payables
BV B & (806)
JEBNEREL 5 Non-current portion 3,468

55 & 32 4R 78 15 U 21 78 BY K P A BN S 16

B EEL  ARAMEIENEAFE
R - BB 2 A FEELAETR
ARRB YHEEBEEFEHRAAFRA
NHBBEREZFERES BBEA2EK

3
MR o

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. The fair value of the government grant is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement
of comprehensive income over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

FHEREEERAT
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IEIE W A (&) 27. DEFERRED INCOME (continued)
B RF 1 B ) Government grants (continued)
e 7 [ B T M B W B > B T A Bh R Ve RE The government grants have been received from various
BHAEMLCCZ ABKBMEREE - B government authorities specifically for the purchases of
BN BEEP I HEE S £ EMLCCYZ A qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
BRBERSHEE —REN B of MLCC. Except for the condition that the government
48 EL b (S o grants must be specifically used for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
of MLCC, there are no other conditions relating to these
grants.
HEHRITEE 28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
rEHE Group
—2-%F | —ZTNF
ERIBNE 2010 2009
Effective floating IMAB | ARBTR | ARETR
interest rate Maturity RMB’000 RMB'000
ENEf Current
HRIETER Interest-bearing bank
—HHAF loans - secured 4.29%-5.84%  2010- 2011 110,666 63,851
110,666 63,851
DA Analysed into:
& S RIT Interest-bearing bank
% C1ER loans repayable: Within one year 110,666 63,851

AEBEZRITERMRITEEANTE
®

(@ AKEBZEEBFEHDARRE
39,258,000 7T (2009 F : A R ¥
89,810,0007T) 2 & THW% - BB
K& &

(b) AEELFEAARKE9540007T
(20094 : AR ¥4,711,0007T) 2
AFRITER °

BHIRIFIR1TE 4 A R #90,000,0007T
(20094 12 A31H : A R ¥ 46,000,000
JT) M A R ¥ 20,666,000 7T (2009 4 12 A
318 : AR¥17,851,0007T) 2 BIA AR
¥R ETYIE -

RITEREMERZLAFERES -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

The Group’s bank loans and bank facilities are secured by:

(a) certain property, plant and equipment of the
Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB39,258,000 (2009: RMB89,810,000); and

(b) certain of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to
RMB6,954,000 (2009: RMB4,711,000).

The secured bank loans of approximately RMB 90,000,000
(81 December 2009: 46,000,000) and RMB20,666,000 (31
December 2009: RMB17,851,000) are denominated in RMB
and United States dollars, respectively.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans approximate to their
fair values.
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28. FTEBITERA 28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

AEBAUTARIBMZRITEE -

The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:

—E-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
AR® TR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEHNE—FERNEMm Floating rate - expiring within one year 225,825 212,272
29. B 29. SHARE CAPITAL
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
AR® TR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JETE Authorised:
1,000,000,000f% &Rz ®Ef&  1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
0.01B Tz EBK HK$0.01 each 10,000 10,000
BEREITREAR Issued and fully paid
405,500,000 % (20094 405,500,000 (31 December 2009:
12H318 : 405,500,000) ordinary shares of
405,500,000/% ) & & HK$0.01 each
[ {50.018 7T 2 & @A 4,055 4,055
AR T EE Equivalent to RMB’000 3,824 3,824
FR - ARBZEERD BTRARE There was no change in the authorised and issued capital of
FRZE o the Company during the year.
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30.

BRRESTE

KNP REE—TBHEREE(ZE
2 mEAEEBEERNELERZ
AERSEERHBEROE - ZF 82
AEWSEERE@QAEBITMKER
AWM EMBEGZREE T2 B3R
BE HENEAETZRIFEBROA
T (D) AREBEEMKE R RINE S
EEES(REBYIFATES) (K
EETMKERANEESMERRE
(EAEBIMKERARNE FRRGH
B e)ANEEIMKERARNES
B EBREERMYE  BTE A8
B RESRRE  HRAEETAKE R
AR HEERET ~ 3T B E M IR ST
5~ B BEXHEMBRFAOA LK
B REMATMA THBEAL -
2t 2R 2007F11 A308 A% 0 k& IF
WA ER BB BEZARI0OERNE
2 e

KRB REZECRHBERRITEE
ROTHEIBEREERRETAEMTEC
BB i AR 1T (68 1 fr) H 1t B8 AR i 2 7T
FRATETNRSBNHEE - B8
BARBTRNEETRA30% - RER
BB A TRENKITEBRESRS
2B —EITEREERA QAR
HE BT 10% ° RIFZTE - MEM
12EAME  JERTTZAEAZTAER
2HEENERRNEE LRABAQRE
MRS ETRMHNI% - E—FREE
Bz EROBREAERRIERAS
R -

MARAES  (THRERKEZRESL
FEZBMEMBEA TR ERE
BEBUERTESS LI ERFAE
17 o b - 1218 A B A A R
BXEEZRBERBIUFATESHEZH
FRBEA LR FOEAERE M8
3B AN A BT A B R 2 21T AR (D BN 0.1%85
BEERHBHAR ARG ERTE
8 335,000,000/8 L& + AFRENIRE
Ae EERAERTATHETT -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include (a) any proposed employee, any full-
time or part-time employee, or a person for the time being
seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member of
the Group; (b) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member
of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business
or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or
entity that provides design, research, development or other
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group; and (g) an associate
of any of the foregoing persons. The Scheme became
effective on 30 November 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
options granted and yet to be exercised under any other
schemes shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
share capital from time to time. The maximum number
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted under the
Scheme is determinable by the directors of the Company,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options or the expiry of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than whichever the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares;
(ii) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

—E-%F “ETNEF
2010 2009

TEESR TEEER

BT BT
Exercise price ~ BREHE | Exerciseprice  BREHE
HK$ Number of HK$ Number of
per share options per share options
R1A1H At 1 January 1.052 20,400,000 1.052 33,000,000
B Forfeited 1.052 (2,000,000) 1.052  (12,600,000)
R12A31H At 31 December 18,400,000 20,400,000
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30. BRESE® 30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
REERARHARITENERENTTEE The exercise price and exercise periods of the share
RITHEEBMT - options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:
—E-2F
2010
THEE
BRERT
Exercise price
EBREHE HK$ T
Number of options per share Exercise period

201045 A& HE 20175811 A29H

16,560,000 1.052 2010 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
2011 ¥ E N E HHE-2017F11 H29H
1,840,000” 1.062 2011 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
18,400,000
—EETNF
2009
TEE
BRET
Exercise price
BREHE HK$ TEH
Number of options per share Exercise period
2009 & N % H B-20174 11 H29H
9,792,000 1.052 2009 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
2010 / 2011 ¥ & A% B H-2017411 529H
10,608,000 1.052 2010/2011 results announcement date — 29 November 2017
20,400,000
* ARTEBRITENERESE BESTAER * The number of share options that can be exercised during the
REEHEE  FBEOT - exercise periods is dependent on the operating results of the
Group, details of which are as follows:
BEREARLBHEARIBFZET The share options may not be exercised on the first
B -mMAEEH BB m2BESE - anniversary of the date of grant and may be conditionally
IPERIBAFE 7B HIREHITERS exercised up to 60%, 30% and 10% of the total share
7 Bl 4 42 B8 I 7 5960% ~ 30% &% 10% © options on the second, third and fourth anniversaries of the
date of grant respectively.
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The share options may only be fully exercised in the event
that the audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008 increases not less than 18% as compared
to that for the year ended 31 December 2007, the audited
net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 increases not less than 18% as compared to that for
the year ended 31 December 2008 and the audited net
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
increases not less than 18% as compared to that for the
year ended 31 December 2009 at the anniversary of the
second, third and fourth years respectively from the date of
grant.

The share options may only be exercised up to 80% of
the share options as set out in the above in the event that
the above conditions are not met in the respective years.
The unexercised share options may be accumulated and
fully exercised in the next year in the event that the above
conditions are met in the respective years.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$840,000 (equivalent to RMB727,000) (2009:
HK$1,924,000, equivalent to RMB1,695,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2010 for the share options
granted in 2008 and vested during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
18,400,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 18,400,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional issued capital of HK$184,000 and
share premium of HK$19,173,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 18,400,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 4.54% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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HE—BHEQR

ZH&E+=- A=+—H 31 December 2010

31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

—EENEF
2009
Hf 5 ARBTR
Note RMB’000

BEHECEEFE: Net assets disposed of:
Y BB REHE Property, plant and equipment 15 4,256
FE Inventories 40,657
eI E 5 BRI Trade receivables 45,299
TERZE - RE RHEMEWRT  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 11,478
BeMIREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 32,617
BEHEFERITEXR Pledged bank deposits 8,177
FEM — & B M RIAE Due from a related party 44
ENEZERRENERE Trade and bills payables (118,564)
FEET B A & H M FE T 51 Accruals and other payables (25,541)
B Provisions (3,741)
JER — R BEE T W RIE Due to a related party (944)
(6,262)
HE B ARz K= Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 9,707
3,445

AT 75 = 2 A Satisfied by

Be Cash 3,445

HE-—HHBARABZRAEEIREF
EBYREERRITFFOFREITOT ¢

subsidiary is as follows:

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits in respect of the disposal of a

—EThE
2009
ARET R
RMB’000
RERE Cash consideration 3,445
BEHECHEERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
KEEFETER deposits disposed of (40,794)
LE—HHRBEARBERZ Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents and
ReLBREFEYRE pledged bank deposits in respect of the disposal
ERRITIFROF N of a subsidiary (37,349)
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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32.

110

&
(a)

(b)

32. RESERVES
K& (@) Group
REERANFERBTIFE ZH The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
BB REHNUBERER S 24 movements therein for the current and prior years
EHEREHREY - are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.
KEBZEHAEGKIE The contributed surplus of the Group represents:
0) BESEESHADKEREA (i) the difference of RMB203,536,000 being
AZRAHRBELREHRG the excess of the nominal value of the
BB ARAR R IR ET shares and contributed surplus of the
ZBRMHEHEBEBZZEARE subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
203,536,0007C : & reorganisation over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor;
(i)  ERREFE IR RIK (i) the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from
B R SEF[5 M E £ 2 BALA the acquisition of DG Eyang from the non-
R 2 823,000 ° controlling shareholders of DG Eyang; and
(iii) mEERHEZRIE (i)  the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
BMELEZEBM ARKE disposal of SZ Eycom to the related party.
1,774,0007T °
b/ NNE (b) Company
BRE Ex B
R EER it RBRE FHRE
Share Share EBHEB#H Exchange ZREE Proposed
i premium option Contributed fluctuation Accumulated final @t
Notes account  reserve  surplus reserve losses  dividend Total
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%TR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
R2009F1 A1 At January 2009 104,657 4779 364,952 (4.238)  (42752) - 427,398
FR2EEBERER  Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (105) (4,562) - (4,667)
RELERRE  Equity-setled share option
ZH arrangements 30 - 1695 - = - - 1695
BRI R Share options forfeited - (1,677) - - 1677 - -
#41R2009%F & 1 8 Proposed final 2009 dividend - - - - (9,273) 9,273 -
R2009%123318  Asat 31 December 2009 104,657 4797 364,952 (4343)  (54910) 9273 424,426
FREEEBEE  Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - (2,165) (2,881) - (5,046)
REZEZBRE  Equity-settied share option
i arrangements 30 - 727 - - - - 77
R R Share options forfeited - (480) - - 480 - _
5 JR2009% K £ 1% & Final 2009 dividends
declared - - - - - (9,273) (9.273)
#R2010%F A £k & Proposed final 2010 dividend - - - - (10,239) 10,239 -
20105128318 Asat 31 December 2010 104,657 5044 364,952 (6,508) (67,550) 10,239 410,834
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33.

& )
ARBZEHBBGERBEEEZEARH
BRRIZEREXANEARNF D HEITRD
EEZERE-

BREREERCROERRITENS
BERNFE E-LHBRYBRERN
F2 4B BN AR B H G BEKAME
e ZeRENARBERERTERE
BB (B B - SN AR BE R A
HHOR WS ERERA G H

RERORH

(@ EREBA
AEERBLEEENLTHELR
EWmE(HEie) KA 2EY
FHHIFEFITF -

M2010F12A31H » NEE IR E
BB FFTZA TFERE R 2~
AIE LY - B EKEK KKK

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the cost of investments in subsidiaries
pursuant to the group reorganisation and the nominal value

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

32. RESERVES (continued)
of the Company’s shares issued.
expire or be forfeited.

33.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as

HeBmMT follows:
KE
Group
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
AR¥ T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FE R Within one year 5,474 4,577
F2E5F (BEHE2F)  Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 7,503 8,626
5% 1% After five years 57 -
13,034 13,203
EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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33. REPHNZHSE 33.
(b) fEBEEA (b)
AEBRBELCEHNOLHBERSA
THERRERDE - &l
HEER2F -

HR2010F 12 A31H » N&E BRI
RTHHBR A T RELE
A4 BEMRERERSEED

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its factory and office
premises under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of two
years.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

™

KEE AR

Gruop/Company
—_E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
AR® TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within one year 212 267
Eekes In the second year - 212
212 479

34. EIE 34. COMMITMENTS

B b BT 5 33(0)F & 2 A48 & M 4 A& 1B
S RBEMR  AEBZEBEAREN

In addition to the operating lease commitments as set out
in note 33(b) above, the Group had the following capital

T commitments at the end of the reporting period:
AEE
Group
—E-ZF —EThF
2010 2009
ARBTR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DETHERBE - Contracted, but not provided for:
BF Buildings 14,578 4,034
B N i 23 Plant and machinery 310 15,556
14,888 19,590
FHRREEHERAT
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35. RAAEE 35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AREBRARANBNREI R ESE Kk At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
NETE - Company had any significant contingent liabilities.
36. BEIRZRER 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
AREBNRNFRNEBEIZEAZLS LR The Group had the following material transactions with
WEREBFBEHF ZEHRLOT - related parties during the year and balances with related
parties at the end of the reporting period:
1) BEMzZRS (1)  Recurring transactions
BMELEHE REME —E-ZF —EENF
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2010 2009
ARB TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REmABEE(R=XBD() BREZABERRA]
Dongguan Guangtong Enterprise B 2 4 KA (a)
Co., Ltd. ("DG Guangtong”) Rental income received from
DG Guangtong (a) 57 57
HeamEBEEE((REEED () BR=EZEERAA
Dongguan Deyang Industrial B 2 4 K A(a)
Co., Ltd. (“"DG Deyang”) Rental income received from
DG Deyang (a) 36 36
7 JIME (i) MR INE @ EMLCC (b)
SZ Eycom (iii) Sale of MLCC to SZ Eycom (b) 2,660 657
BFRIMEBRKE ek A@)
Rental income received from
SZ Eycom (a) 867 181
B E - Notes:
(i) REABZBREAREARARIWMITES (i) The shareholders of DG Guangtong are the brother and
BR {2 88 S HE 2 L SR IR K © sisters of Mr. Chen Weirong, an executive director of the
Company.
(ii) RREGZREAERARIZBRRE (ii) The shareholders of DG Deyang are the brothers of Ms.
BREZLZRE - Luo Zhanli, a shareholder of the Company.
(iii) AIERzHZERRRBAARE (iif) The ultimate shareholders of SZ Eycom are Mr. Chen
ERERTE BHREZLRBERE Weirong, Ms. Shuang Mei and Mr. Liao Jie, directors of the
o Company.
(a) NEBEBEFF L2 EOREME (a) The tenancy agreements entered into between the Group
W E 2 ARFRET AL © and the related parties based on mutually agreed terms.
(b) RERGE—BRERERTET - & (b) The transactions were conducted in accordance
TBERAEBMEBYRFREZ with normal commercial terms, which should be no
16K e less favourable than those offered by the Group to its
independent customers.
EERABLARFEREB CABER In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions were

B2 T -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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carried out in the ordinary course of business of the Group.
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36. BEIRZR&EHKA 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
2 FLEXRS (2) Non-recurring transactions
HEL AR XEME —E-FF —TENF
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2010 2009
ARBT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RENBE MRZXEEE
B ) F # T (c)
DG Guangtong Purchases of mobile phone
components from
DG Guangtong (c) - 6,004
REEB MREEGEER
B8 F#ITH(c)
DG Deyang Purchases of mobile phone
components from
DG Deyang (c) - 1,628
B & Note:
() 4 8) F # 7T 15 B R 31| 1B 38 72 2009 & (c) The purchases of mobile phone components were made
WAL B EREE - REELE by SZ Eycom before its disposal by the Group in the year
Y (EBEAREE S EAEBE ° 2009. The purchase prices were mutually agreed between

SZ Eycom and the related parties.

3) BEL#E& (3) Balances with related parties
—E-FF ZEENF
2010 2009
AR T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE W X 1E Due from
RENRE DG Guangtong 1,923 1,716
R=EG DG Deyang 520 162
EYIE R SZ Eycom 4,466 1,105
6,909 2,983
MEREHRARESHIE - |ER The balances with related parties are all trade in
R NEBTERNE - GLitrr nature, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
FEHEHEAEQNFERE - terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these

balances approximate to their fair values.

FIHEHEE)ARA
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T —ZT 44+ — §=+—H 31 December 2010

BELXS RERE

4) AEEMITETEASZHH

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(4) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group

—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
ARB TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e NMoEEL Salaries and allowances 2,083 2,025
B RAE A R Retirement benefit contributions 87 82
R 45 B AR R R X2 Equity-settled share option expense 344 590

TRHFEER Total compensation paid to key
A B Z 4B management personnel 2,514 2,697

EEMEZFBHRN XIS -

HREMREEENREE

AEBZIEZSRIAGTETARIN)
BRFAEBRITERLE S RRITHES -
ELSRTAZEZANTIAAEEZ
REBEET AKEBEBZHERENK
HEEEACHEHMEMEERERE
WMEWE SRANENEZERR

AEBEMTASEZEZRAR /X
Rk SNERR EFEERBERBDES
Rl EFgEZUMEEESEAR
ZHBER - BREBERMAIT -

A R E B
AEBEEmEOMGH RS EKREEE
AEBMBEFHNEZEBEHE LA
BEMEZEMERFRERE -

AEBZRITEFRERMNX RERRH
PR 75 ¥R 2k M 7E28 o

MARBRETHEZN R ZAIEAIEE
EP0EEAHYAKERNFER 2 H
RESTEBEATZE -

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
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Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 above.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans and cash
and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt
obligations with floating interest rates and time deposits
with fixed interest rates which are short term.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the
bank loans of the Group are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest
rates denominated in RMB and United States dollars would
have no material impact on the Group’s profit and equity
during the year.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales, purchases or bank loans by
operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group entered into forward currency
contracts for bank loans and tends to accept foreign
currency exchange risk avoidance or allocation terms when
arriving at purchase and sale contracts to minimise its
transactional currency exposures. The Group takes rolling
forecast on the foreign currency revenue and expenses,
and matches the currency and the amounts incurred, so as
to alleviate the impact on business due to exchange rate
fluctuations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and Japanese
yen exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s equity
due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities.

wE Group
MR AT BBt Al
mAEm,
(H2)
#m,/ Increase/ HEZ KN,/
(H2) b= (decrease) (HD)*
Increase/ in profit Increase/
(decrease) before  (decrease)
rate income tax in equity*
% ARETT ARETR
% RMB’000 RMB'000
201012A31H 31 December 2010
i ARMEZ{E If United States dollar weakens against RMB (5) (778) 227
BT ARES@E If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,922) 167
HEEXARBEE IfJapanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 75 (3)
fiET L ARBFE If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 778 (227)
& T AREFAE IfHong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1,922 (167)
WEENXAREFE If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (75) 3
2009 12H31H 31 December 2009
fHETH AR @E If United States dollar weakens against RMB (5) (42) 420
i T i ARMEZ{E  IfHong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (1,888) (544)
M B E R ARMEE{E If Japanese Yen weakens against RMB (5) 1 (3)
fiE T i ARMFAE If United States dollar strengthens against RMB 5 42 (420)
BT AREFE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 1,888 544
HBE X ARETIE If Japanese Yen strengthens against RMB 5 (1) 3

* NEEREE

* Excluding retained profits
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MHEREE BN RBE®

EERER
FEWE Z RS Bﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬂiigirﬂé?
EHzHEAREERR AEBDEHE

azﬁ%mﬁmﬂ;%@ﬁzgmﬁ% i
iit?—%ﬁﬁtﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬂz c AEEEA

3 P 1 AHE 2 R R ITEK

ERASEEMEREE(AFEERS
EReEBYREMEBERR) ZEER
- DR TEOMESLE  EREFR
ZETREEZER@E -

AEEERBAERFBEREENEL
F=ZNETXZ ARNAKERKES
EAHREDHNTRAEERITRZE
FHAK AEBATEBEEPZEE
[\ B o

ERASEREBKREZERMELEZE

ERBEMELCEE RULFHHR
RIS eE22 K EE -

REBES R
AEEERERABESFTET

AEm
EEsRmpRER HWITAEZEEES/MT
ERcmEE(INEKE SRR 2 5 8
AREFEEZHESRE °

AEBZBREEFRARREMREE
EBY REBRTERUNENELESR
THE-

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade receivables represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has a policy in place to ensure
that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and to closely monitor the collection of the trade
receivables on an ongoing basis. The Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 22 to these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash

equivalents and have available funding through bank loans
to meet its working capital requirements.
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37 HBXEEREEREZBNRBE® 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
nEBESRKE Liquidity risk (continued)

RBEMR  AEBERARAZEZBRAE
RIBFTORBEBERRZEHABRAT ¢

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

follows:
RKE Group
—E-2F
2010
DA1E
RERE Less than 1F 0 E et
On demand 1year Over 1 year Total
ARETRT AR®BTRT ARBTR AR%®TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
STERITER Interest-bearing bank loans - 110,666 - 110,666
ERNESEZ K Trade and bills payables
N R & - 57,582 - 57,582
oAb B R R Other payables and
JEETE R accruals - 32,397 - 32,397
- 200,645 - 200,645
R EE Group
—EENF
2009
DPR1F
B SR Less than 16 E BET
On demand 1year  Over 1 year Total
ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
FFRIRITER Interest-bearing bank loans - 65,294 - 65,294
ENE S8BEZRL  Trade and bills payables
& R % - 82,138 - 82,138
b FE R Other payables and
FEEtE A accruals - 24,724 1,080 25,804
- 172,156 1,080 173,236
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BBEREREZBNRBR®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

REBESRAKE Liquidity risk (continued)
¥ NN Company
—E-ZFF
2010
DRA1EF
RERE Less than wst
On demand 1 year Total
AR T AR® TR AR® TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
b JE T R R Other payables and
et E A accruals - 1,026 1,026
FETBY B A 178 Due to subsidiaries 19,793 - 19,793
19,793 1,026 20,819
—EENF
2009
D1
R E KB Less than Et
On demand 1 year Total
AREFTT ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HAb B R R Other payables and
st EH accruals = 755 755
FE M B A 71 Zie Due to subsidiaries 10,222 = 10,222
10,222 755 10,977

EXxEH

AEBEAEREZTEAMEERAE
EEFEKLERERRBENEANLER -
NXBEBIERBREBZHZAL -

REBEREEREBIWRELEM MR
FEHAELAE ZHBFLAZEAR
EE AEELATAREBREIRES
- ABREFEERNKBEITHRD - BE
20104 K 2009F 12 A31HILFE - &1
BEAZEERE BEIBEFIEEE o

EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2010

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2010 and
2009.
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MHEREE BN RBE® 37.

EREEE)
REBENEEABLHRERER  &E
BELERNER FERAER N EER
FEE o EBFREUGTERITER BN
B EA R ENEIE R EH A RS FORR
SRECEEYITE - BEREBY LA H
BAZELM#ERZ AEBZBREEHE
EEELREFESEZKFEE - RE
WEPRCEEAGBLEENT ¢

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as the sum of interest-bearing bank loans, trade
and bills payables, and other payables less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable
to owners of the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at
the ends of the reporting periods are as follows:

—E-ZF ZEThF
2010 2009
AR TR ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFRRITER Interest-bearing bank loans 110,666 63,851
EAE SRR R Trade and bills payables
JE 4 R 1% 57,582 82,138
H {th JE S 3R Other payables 31,299 25,024
W IRENIEEZEEY  Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(P 3E24) (note 24) (66,101) (61,162)
133,446 109,851
B FER Net debt 133,446 109,851
B ATRIHEA ARG Equity attributable to owners of the parent 437,270 410,095
o R EEFRE Equity and net debt 570,716 519,946
BEEABHEX Gearing ratio 23% 21%
B mR 2 E 38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEHRRENR2011FIA1BEEE=TSH
JE L IR T B

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2011.

FHEREEERAT
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